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NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS m
E

NOTICE i8S HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FORTY-SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
COMPANY WILL BE HELD AT SHETH HIRACHAND GUMANJI TRUST HALL, HIRA BAUG, 17 FLOOR,
KASTURBA CHOWIK (C.P. TANK) MUMBA! - 400004 ON TUESDAY, THE 11™AUGUST, 2015AT 3.00 PM.
TOTRAMNSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To recelve, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Balance Sheet & Profit and
Lose Account with Notes thereon and Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year ended 31" March,
2015 togetherwith the Reports of the Directors' and Auditors’ thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Smi. Seema A, Javeri {DIN: 01788838) who retires by rolation and is
gligible for re-appointment.

To appointAuditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider and if thought fif, to pass,
with or without modification(s), the following resclution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT M/s. V. Sankar Alvar & Co., Chartered Accountants {Registration No. 108208W),
be and is hereby appointed as Auditors of the Company, o hold office from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting upto the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting af such
remuneration as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESQLVED THAT pursuant to Section 14 of the Companiss Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder, the existing Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby replaced by new set
of Articles of Association of the Company duly placed before the members initialed by the Chairman for
the purpose of identification.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any of its duly constituted committes be and is hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary for the aforesaid amendment in
Articles of Association.”

To consider and, if thought 1, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Spocial Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196 & 187 of the Companies Act 2013 read
with Schedule V and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 and subject o further approval of the Central Government, if required and all other applicable
provisions, if any, and rules made there under of the Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the
members be and is hereby accorded fo the reappointment of Shri Asit D. Javeri (DIN : 00268114) as
Chairman & Managing Dirsctor of the Company for period of 3 (Three) Years with effect from 17
September, 2015 on the terms and conditions including remuneration as are sef out in the agreement
to be entered into between the Company and Shri Asit D. Javeri, a draft whereof is placed before this
maeting and initialed by the Chairman for the purpose of identification, which agreement is hereby
specifically sanctioned with liberty to the Board of Directors (hersinafter referred to as “the Board®
which term shall be deamed to includs the Nomination and Remuneration Committes constituted by
the Board) to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the sald reappointment and/or remuneration
and/or agresment as may be agreed to between the Board and ShriAsitD. Javeri ”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject fo further approval of the Ceniral Govemnment if required, in
the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year, aforesaid remuneration by way of
salary, silowances and perquisites shall be payable to Shii Asit D. Javeri, Chairman & Managing
Director, as minimum remuneration.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to take all such steps as may
be necessary, proper of expedient io give effect to this resolution.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
$Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196 & 197, of the Companies Act 2013
read with Scheduls V and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rulss, 2014 and subject to further approval of the Central Government, if required and all other
applicable provisions, if any, and rules made thers under of Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the
membars be and is hereby accorded for appointment of Smt. Seema A Javeri (DIN : 01768938) as
Executive Director — Administration of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 1% July,
2015 and io pay remuneration on such terms and condilions, including remuneration as are set out
inthe agreement io be entered into betwesn the Company and Smi. Seema A Javeri, a draft whereof
is placed before this meetling and inilialed by the Chairman for the purpose of identification, which
agreement is hereby specifically sanctioned with liberly {o the Board of Direclors {(hereinafier
referred fo as “the Board™ which term shall be deemed to include the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee constituted by the Board) to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said
appointment and/or remuneration and/or agreement as may be agresad o between the Board and
Smi. SeemaA Javeri."

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to further approval of the Central Government if required, in
the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial yoar, aforesaid remunaration by way of
salary, allowances and perquisites shall be payable to Smt. Seema A. Javer, as minimum
remuneration.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised {o take all such steps as may
be necaessary, proper or expedient {o give effect {o this resolution.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification{s), the following resolution as
Special Resolulion:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Mseetings of Board & its Powers) Rules, 2014
including any modifications or amendments or clarifications thereon, if any, Clause 48 of the Listing
Agreement including any modifications or amendmenis thereof, if any, and out of abundant caution,
the approval of the members ofthe Company be ahd is hereby accorded for entering into confracts /
arrangements / transactions with the following related parties from the financlal year 2015-16 and
onward, up to the maximum amounts as appended below against each nature or class of contract /
arrangement/ transaction:-
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pald up caplital.

pius interest thereon.

Name of the Ralated | Nama of tha | Naturs of | Naturs, Material Terms, | Any other
Party Director or | Relstionghip Monetary value and | relevant
KMP who Iz Particulars of the contract | Information
refated, i or srrangement
any
Manekchand Panachand | Mr. Asit | Holding Company | Availlment of ICD / Financial ==
Tradging Irvastment Co. | Javeri, Mrs. Asgsistant fo the exdent of
Pyt Lid. Seema Javer ¥ 18 Crores p.a. plus payment
Mr. Abhishek of Interest therson
Javer
Chandra Net Pvt, Lid, Mr. Asit | Associale Availing Internat and web -
Javeri, Mr. | Common direciors | related services o the extent
Abhishek in both  the | O X Kanoi
:Jait‘;:nlﬂ J':r:é oc?mrf;;;z; a;f,,;’ Assistant to the extant of ¥
- 1 Crore pa. plus  interest
(K than 2% of the | shareon.
pald up capital.
Strix Wirgless Systerns | Mr. Aght | Associale Avaling 1T  related & -
Pyi, Lid. Javeri, Mrs. | Common dirsctors | Wirsless Servicss o the
Seama in both the | extent of €1 Crors pa.
Javari, Mr. | Companles and /| and/or avaliment of ICD /
Abhishek or holding more | Financial Assigtant to the
Javerl. than 2% of the | extent of ¥ 1 Crore pa.

“‘RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors be and is hersby authorized to settle any guestion,
difficulty or doubt arising with regard to giving effect o the above Resolution and to do all such acts,
deeds and things as may be in ifs absolute discretion deem necessary, proper, desirable and to

finalize any documeants and writings related thereto.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to delegate all
or any of the powers conferred on it by or under this Resolution to any Committes of Directors of the
Company or to any Director of the Company or any other officer(s) or employes(s) of the Company
as it may consider appropriate in order to give effect to this Resolution.”

Registered Office -
Hira Baug, 1" Floor,

Kasturba Chowi, (C.P. Tank),

Mumbai-400004

CIN:L24110MH1973PLC0O16698
E-mail. sadhananitro@sncl.com

Date: 16" April, 2015.

By Order of the Board

N.R. Jani

Company Secretary




)

NOTES:

1.

Amember entitled to attend and voie at the mesting is entitled to appoint & proxy to attend and
voie instead of himself and s proxy need not be a member of the Company. The proxy in order
to be effective must be deposited st the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48
hours before the commencement of the meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capltal of the Company
carrying voling rights may appolint a singles person as proxy and such person shall notactasa
proxy for any other person or shareheolder.

Corporate members intending to send thelr Authorised Representatives to attend the Maating are
requasted fo send 1o the Company a cerified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their
representative to attend and vote on theirbehalf.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first holderin
the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitied to vole.

The Company has appointad M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited (RTA), C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills
Compound, L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup, Mumbai 400 078 as Regisirars and Share Transfer Agents for
Physical Shares. The said (RTA) is also the Depository interface of the Company with both NSDL &
CDSL. Their Telephone No. 022-25983838, E-mail address: mt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in, Fax No.
022-25946969.

However, keeping in view the convenience of Shareholders, documents relating to shares will
continue to be received by the Company at its Registered Offics. Telephone No. 022-23822524, E-
mail address: sadhananitro@sncl.com.

Brief resume of Shri. Asit D. Javeri and Smt. Seema A. Javeri, nature of their expertise in specific
functional areas, name of companies in which they hold directorship and membershins /
chairmanships of Board Commiitees, shareholding and relationships between directors inter-se as
stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, are provided in the
Comporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report, even though Clause 45 is not
mandatorily applicable to the Company.

The Company has fransferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends upto the financial years 2006-07
from fime fo time on due dates, to the investor Education and Protection Fund {the |EPF) established
by the Ceniral Govemnment. Pursuant to the provisions of investor Education and Protection Fund
{Uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounis lyving with companies) Rules,
2012, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amount lving with the
Company as on 12" September, 2014 (date of last Annual General Msating) on the website of the
Company (www.snol.oom), as also on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

The Securities and Exchange Board of india {SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN} by svery participant in securities market. Membears holding shares in
slectronic form are, therefore, requested o submit thelr PAN fo their Deposifory Parlicipants with
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares In physical form can
submit their PAN 1o the Company /RTA.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain closed from
Saturday, the 1% August, 2015 to Tuesday, the 11" August, 2015 {both days inclusive) for the purpose
of Annual General Masting.

All documents referred o in the accompanying notice and the explanatory statements are open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during office hours on all working days, except
Saturdays, between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

Members are requested to nolify immedialely change of address, if any, fo their Depository
Participants {(DPs) in respect of their electronic share accounts and Link intime India Private Limited
{RTA)}, or to the Company at its Registered Office in respect of their physical shares.

The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Direclors are interssted, maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available
forinspection by the members at the Annual General Mesting.

5
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. Entrance Pass and Proxy Form is annexed. Members are requested fo bring their duly filled in

attendance slip with copy of Annual Report ic the place of mesting.

. Members who hold shares in Dematerialized form are reguested to bring their client ID and DP ID

numbers for easy identification of attendance at the measting.

Members desiring any information are requested to write to the Company 10 days inadvance

Members who have nol registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested o register their a-mail

eddress for receiving all communication including Annual reports, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the

Company alectronically.

Voling through electronic means

in compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companiss Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies

Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Clause 35B of the Listing

Agreement, the Company is pleased {0 provide its members the facility to exercise their right to vole

on resolutions proposed fo be considered at the 42™ Annual General Mesting (AGM) by electronic

means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided by National

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members

attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their

right at the mesting through ballot paper.

The members who have cast their vole by remote e-voling prior io the AGM may also atiend the AGM

but shali not be entitied o cast their vote again.

The remote e-voting period commences on 7" August, 2015 (9:00 am) and ends on 10" August, 2015

{5:00 pm). During this pericd members’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical formorin

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 4" August, 2015, may cast their vote by remote e-voting.

The remote e-voling module shall be disabled by NSDL for veting thereafter. Once the vote on a

resolution is cast by the membser, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

A. In case a Member receives an email from N3DL [for members whose email iDs are
registered with the Depository Participants(s)]:

{i Open email and open PDF fila viz; “remote e-voling.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. as
password. The said PDF file contains your user 1D and password/PIN for remote e-voling.
Piease nole thalthe password is an initial password.

(il  Launchinternet browser by typing the following URL.: hitps://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

il  Clickon Shareholder- Login

(W) PutuserlD and password as initial password/PIN noted in step (i} above. ClickLogin.

{v} Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new password of your
choice with minimum 8 digits/characters or combination thereof. Note new password. ltis
strongly recommendad not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential.

{viy Home pageofe-voling opens. Click on e-Voling: Active Voling Cydles.

{vii} Select"EVEN"(E-voling Event Number) of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited.

{vili} Nowyouare ready fore-voling as Cast Vole page opens.

(ix) Cast your vote by sslecting appropriate option and dlick on “Submit” and also “Confirm”
when prompled.

{0y  Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully” will be displayed

{d) Oncevyouhava voled on the resolution, you will not be allowad to modify your vols.

Cdiy  Institutional & Corporate Shareholders (Le. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are
required to send scanned copy (PDFAPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter ete. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory(ies) who are authorized io vols, io the Scrutinizer through e-mail to

sncshare@sncl. com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co in
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B. incase a Memberrecaives physical copy of the Nolice of AGM [for members whose emali IDs are
not registered with the Depository Participants(s) or requesting physical copyl:
{i initial password is provided as below/at the boliom of the Allendance Slip forthe AGM:

| EVEN (E Voting Event Number) | USERID | USERIDPASSWORDIPIN |

(i} Pleasefollowall steps from Sl No. (i} 1o 81 No. (i) above, io castvole.

V1. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the Downloads section of www evoling hadl.com or
call on toll free no.: 1800-222-980.

Vii. i you are already registerad with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user iD and
password/PIN for casting your vote,

Vill. You can also update your mobile number and e-mall id in the user profile deiails of the folio which may be
used for sending future communication{s).

iX. The veling rights of members shall be in proporiion o their shares of the paid up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 4" August, 2015.

X. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company afler dispatch

of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date L.e. 4" August, 2015, may obtaln the login ID and
password by sending a request at evoling@nsdl.co.in or issuer/RTA.
However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remoie e-voling then you can use your existing
user 1D and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password
by using *Forgot User Defails/Password” option available on wayw.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at
the following toll fres no.; 1800-222-880,

Xl. Amember may participate in the AGM gven after exercising his right io vote through remols e-voting but
shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.

Xll. A person, whose name Is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners
maintained by the depaositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facllity of remote
e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

Xiil.Mrs. Kumudini Paranjape, Pariner of M/s Makarand M Joshi & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries,
has baen appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voling process in a fair and
transparent manner.

XiV.The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voling is fo be held,
allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “remote e-voling” or “Baliot Paper” for all those
members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting
facility.

XV, The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voling at the general meseting, will first count the votes cast
at the meeting and thereafter unblock the voles cast through remote e-voling in the presence of atleast
fwo witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not fater than three days of the
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total voles cast in favour or against, if
any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in wriling, who shall countersign the same and
declare the result of the voting forthwith.

XV|. The Resulis declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the
Company wwwsncl.com and on the websiie of NSDL. The results shall simuliansously be
communicated to the Stock Exchange (BSE).
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
Profile of Directors being re-appointed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting:
Name & Age Educational Experience

Qualification
Shri. Asit D. Javeri (59 Yrs.) B.Sc. (Hon.) | He joined the company in January, 1985 as Managing Director.
Prior to joining the company Shri Asit D, Javeri had experience of
9 years of running chemical industry. He has been associated
with the company for more than 28 years.

Smt. Seemna A. Javeri (57 Yrs.) | B.Sc. She joined the company as Woman Director on 13" February,
2014. She possesses appropriate skill, experience and knowledge,
inter-alia, in the field of Administration.

Name of the Companies in which Director(s) to be re-appointed / appointed by Shareholders Holds
directorship and the membership of Committees of the board:

Name of the Director | Name of the Companies the person | Name of the Companies in which the person is

holds Direclorship a2 Member of the Committee of the Board
Shri. Asit D. Javeri 1. Sadhana Nitro Chemn Limited Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited
2. Premier Limited Share Transfer Committee-Member
3. Indian Extractions Limited (Executive)
4. Phthalo Colours & Chemicals () Ltd. | Premler LimHied
5. Lifestyle Net Works Ltd. Stakeholders Relationship Committee -
6. Anuchem b.v.b.a., Belgium Chairman (Non Executive)
7. Manekchand Panachand Trading | Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee, Audit
Investment Company Pvi. Ltd. Committee-Member (Non Executive}
8. Chandra Net Private Limited Indlan Extractions Limited
9. Sirix Wireless Systems Pvi. Ltd. Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration
10. Strix System Inc. USA Committee / Stakeholders Relationship
11. AHANA Inc. USA Committee — Chairman (Non Executive)

Phthalo Colours & Chemicals (I) Ltd
Audit Committee-Member (Non Executive)

Smt. Seema A. Javeri | 1. Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited -
2. Lifestyle Networks Limited -
3. Manekchand Panachand -

Trading Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd
4. Strix Wireless Systems Pvt. Lid
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

flem No. 4

It is hareby informed that majority of the sactions of the Companiss Act, 2013 have besen notified. Pursuant
o the nolified provisions, the Articles of Association is required to be amended to align it with new
provisions. it is therefors proposed to adopt new set of the Articles of Assoclation of the Company in place of
existing Articles of Association of the Company.

As per section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 approval of members of the Company by Special Resolution
is required. Therefore members are requested to pass the necessary spacial resolution as mentioned in the
notice,

The copy of the Articles of Association of the Company is open for inspaction of the shareholders at the
registered office of the Company during working hours except on Saturdays & public holidays.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives, are interested or concemed in the
resolution.

Htem No.Sand§

On the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee and subject to approval of the
Members and the approval of Central Government if required, the Board of Directors of the Company at its
meeting held on April 16, 2015 have (a) reappointed Shri Asit D. Javeri, as the Chairman & Managing
Director for a further period of 3 years with effect from 1* September 2015 to 31" August 2018 and fixed the
remuneration payable to him and (b) appointed Smt. Seema Javeri as Executive Director — Administration
of the Company and fixed the remuneration payable to her.

The present remuneration payable to Shri Asit D. Javeri has been approved by Government of India, vide
their sanction letter No. SRN No.BE0070497/3/2012-CL VI dated 27" May, 2013.The prasent agreement
between the Company and ShriAsitD. Javeriis upto 31" August, 2015.

Smt. SeemaA. Javeri joined the Board as an Additional Director of the Company on February 13, 2014. She
was appointad as Director, eligible io retire by rotation, in the previous Annual General Meeting of the
Company. She has not drawn any remuneration from the Company till 31* March, 2015.

The Board of Directors of the Company, keeping in view the qualification, experience, experiise of and in
particuiar the contribution made by Shri. A. D. Javer and Smi. Seema A Javeri In the overall development of
the Company and having regard to the provisions in respect of managerial remuneration of the Companies
Act 2013, thought it justified to re-appoint/appoint them as Chairman & Managing Director and Executive
Director - Adminisiration of the Company respectively and pay them remuneration, within the overall limits
specifiedin the Schedule V of the said Act.

It is proposad o pay, subjact 1o approval of the mambers and the approval of Cantral Govemment if
required, the foliowing remuneration to them which is commensurate with their experience and
responsibiliies of heading a company of this size.

i} BasicSalary and Annual increment:

8r No | Particuiers Shel. Asit D. Javer &mt. Beema Javer|
i Baslc Salary T 2,45 000~per month whh effect ¥1,00,000/- par month with affect from
from 1% September, 2015 1% July, 2015.

2 Annual Incremant ¥ 25,000/ will be given on foillowing | ¥ 10,000/~ will be given on following =
1 September every vear during the | July every vear during the tenure of
tenure of agreement agresmant




- o =
il Perguisites:

in addition to the above Salary, they will be entitled io the perquisites and allowancss like house

rent allowance logether with reimbursement of expenses or allowances for utilities such as gas,

electricity, waler, furnishings and repairs, education allowance, medical reimbursement, club
fees and such other perquisiles and allowances in accordance with the rules of the company or as
may be agreed by the Board of Direclors on recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration

Committee (NRC}). However, such perquisites and allowances will be subject fo a maximum

ceiling of annual salary as under;-

A} In addilion to above, they shall be entilled {0 leave travel aliowance for self and family,
mediclaim and personal accident policy cover io the extent of 70% of annual basic
salary for Mr. Asit . Javer] and 35% of annual basic salary for Smt. SsemaA. Javeri.

B} In addiion to above, they shall also entitled to annual performance allowance not
exceeding 35% of annual basic salary as may be decided by the Board on
recommendation of NRC.

C} For the purpose of caloulating the above celling, on the perguisiies and allowances, the
perquisites shall be evaluated as per the Income-iax Rules, wherever applicable. In the
absence of any such Rules, perquisites shall be sevaluated at actual cost.

D) Family for the above purpose means spouse, dependent children and dependent
parents of the managerial personnel.

E} In addition to above perquisites they shall also be entitled to following benefits which will not be
included in computation of ceiling on perquisites.

a} Company's contribution to Provident Fund, Family Pension Fund and superannuation or
annuity fund to the extent these either singly or together are not taxable under the
income TaxAct.

b} Graluity payable as perthe Rules ofthe Company.

o) Encashment ofleave accumulated but not availed of during the tenura.

d} Provision of Company's car for official duties with driver.

a) Freelelecommunication facility at the residence.

FY They will be permitted o encash leave while in service as in case of other employees of the
company.

@) inthe event of loss or inadequacy of profits during the aforesaid period, aforesaid remuneration
not exceeding the limits specified in Scheduls V shall be payable to them as a minimum
remuneration.

H} The terms and conditions of the said reappointment and/or remuneration and/or agreement may
be sltered ard varied from time to time by the Board as it may, inits, discretion, deem fit,

The agresment may be terminated by either parly by giving the other parly six month's notice or by any
shorter notice as may be mutually agreed to between the partiss.

They shall not, so long as they function as such, become interested or otherwise concerned directly or
through their spouse and / or minor children in any selling agency of the Company in future without prior
approval of the Central Government.

S0 long as they function as such shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board of
Directors or committees thereof,

in compliance with the provisions of Section 198 & 197 Companies Act 2013 read with Schedule V and
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and all other
applicable provisions, i any, of the Companies Act 2013, the ferms of remuneration specified above are
now being placed before the members in the General Meeting for their approval.
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The present agreement with Shri A. D. Javer along with Governiment of India's sanction letters for the
present arrangement which is expiring on 31" August 2015 and the proposed draft Agreement between the
Company and Shri. Asit D. Javeri and the proposed draft Agreement between the Company and Smt.
Seema Javeri, is available for inspection by the members of the Company at its Registered Office of the
Company during the office hours on all working days, except Saturdays, between 11.00a.m. and 1.00 p.m.
up tothe date of the Annual General Meeting.

This may be treated as an abstract of the terms of reappointment of Shri Asit D. Javeri and appointment of
Smi. Seema A. Javeri and the memorandum of interest pursuant to Seclion 180 of the Companies Act,
2013.

The Board recommsnds the Special Resoiutions at item No. 5 & 6 of the niotice for your approval.

Additional information for the shareholders, as required under Schedule ¥V to the Companies Act,
2013, and to the extent applicable to the Company  Appointes is given below:

1. General Information:

iy Nature of Industry: The Company I8 engaged in the Manufacturing of various chemical
intermediates.

i} Date or expecied date of commencement of commercial production: The Company was
incorporated on 21% July, 1973 and Certificate for Commencement of Business was issued on 10"
Seplember, 1973.

iy Financial performance based on given indicators: as per published audited financial resulls for
the year ended 31 March, 2015:

Particulars Tinlacs
Sales and Other Income 4841
Profit{loss) before tax 317
Nel Excoss Provigion for tax and Differad lax 102
Proflt after tax 418

iv} Export performance and foreign exchange earned for the financial year ended 31 March, 2015:
FOB value of exports ¥ 26.37 lacs.
v) Foreign Investment or Collaborators: This is not applicable.

2. INFORMATION ABOUTTHEAPPQOINTEE:
i} Background details:
Shri, Asi D, Javer Smt. Seema Javer

Shi. Asit D. Javer, aged 53 years, and having | Smi. Sesma A. Javer, aged 57 years, and
Graduation in Scignce, joined the company in January, | having Graduation in Science, joined the
1985 as Managing Director.  Prior o jolning ths | Company on February 13, 2014 as Additional
comnpany, Shi. Asit D. Javer had experisnce of 9 years | Direclor.  Prior to joining the company, Smt.
of running chemical industry. Ho has beon associated | Ssama A Javer had sxperience of 11 years In

with the company for more than 28 years. Administration.

ii. Pastremuneration drawn:
Year Shel. AgH D, Jever! Smi. Seema Jeverd
2012-13 {15 Months} ¥ 55 82 808/- -
2013-14 { 8 Months) T 33,50,784/- -
2014-18 ¥ 44, 48,950/- -
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ili}j Recognition or Rewards (Guarantee Commission payable}:

Shel. Asit D. Javeri

Smi. Seema Javerl

T 24,00,000/-

iv} Job profile and suitability:

Shrl. Aslt O. Javeri

Smi. Seoema Javer!

Over the vears, Shii. Asit D. Javerd has been entrusted
with the overall responsibility of the Company. He has
immensely contribuied in the overall devslopment of the
Company specifically in aftaining higher expors and
commerciafization of several high value added chamical
intermediates. Shr Asit D. Javeri has iaken soveral
initiatives to restructurs the business operations.

Directors

Smi. Seema A, Javer, joined the Company in
February, 2014 as Additional Director.
Science Graduate and having sxperience and
knowledge in Administration. Keeping in view the
relavant axpsrtise in Aoministration, the Board of
recommends  appointment of Smt.
Ssoma Javer as Exscutive Dirsctor -Administration

She is

v} Remuneration proposed: he remuneration package is given in detail in the explanalory siatement.

However, the same is summarized hersunder:

Sr. Particulars Shri Askh D Javerd 8mit Seema Javer
Mo,
a) Salary T2.45,000/- P.M. 1,800,000/~ P.M.
[9)] Parguisites & Allowances Maximum 70% of salary Meaximurn 35% of salary
c) Performance Aliowance Not sxcesding 35% of annual | Not excssding 35% of annual
salary as may be decided by | salary as may be decided by
the Board the Board
d} Minimum Remuneration in | Remunsration as above will bs | Remuneration as above will be
case of inadeguacy of profits | minimum remuneration minimumn remuneration
during any financial vear

viy Comparative ramuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile of the
position and person:-

Taking into consideration the size and nature of the Company, the profile of Shii. Asit D. Javeriand
Smt. Seema Javeri, the responsibiliies shouldered by them and the indusfry benchmarks, the
aforesaid remuneration is commensurate with the remuneration package paid to similar senior
lavel positions in other companies.

vil) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or relationship with the managerial
personnel.-

Besides the remuneration proposed, Shii Asit . Javeri and Smi. Seema Javer do not have any
pther pecuniary relationship with the Company except that Shri Asit D. Javeri has given personal
guaraniee for the borrowings of the company. Shri Asit . Javeri and Smt. Seema A. Javeri are
husband and wife.

DISCLOSURES:
The details of the remunerstion package of Shei. A. D. Javeri and Smt. Seema Javeri are given in the
sxplanatory statement hersinabove and the sams is contained in the draft agreemenis with them which
are opan for ingpedction as mentionad hereinabove. Other Directors are paid no remunaration except
sitting fees for the mesting of the Board and Committees thereof. All the components of the
remuneration are fixed except performance allowance which will be decided by the Board on the
perindical performance of the Managerial Personnel based on recommendation of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee. The appointment is contractual and provides for six months notice period.
Mo stock option has baen given to them.

Your Directors commend the Resolution for your approval.
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Shri. Asit D. Javeri and Smit. Seema Javeri are concemed or interested in their respective
reappointment/ appointment and the remuneration payable to them. Further, none of the other
Directors / key managerial personal of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise except Smt. Seema Javeri (wife of ShriA. D. Javer for resolution of
reappointment of Shi A, D. Javeri), Shii A. D. Javeri (husband of Smt. Seema Javeri for resolution of
appointment of Smt. Seema Javeri) and Shri. Abhishek Javeri (son) in both the Resoiutions.

HemNo.7

The Audit Commitiee & the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 16/04/2015 have
approved certain fransactions to be entered into with some of the related parties of the Company as
mentioned hereunder. The Company is entering these transactions with the related parties in the ordinary
course of business and at arm's length only; but out of abundant caution the approval of Sharsholders by
way of Special Resolution is being sought pursuant to second proviso to Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 & Clause 48 of the Listing

Agresment.

MName of the Holgted | Name of the | Nature of | Neturg, Matorial Torms, | Any  other
Party Dirsctor or KMP | Ralationship iMonestary valus and | relevant
who is selsted, Parficulars of the contract | information
Hany or arrangemant
Manakchand Mr. Asit Javeri, | Holding Company Availmant of ICD / Binancial -
Panachand Trading | Mrs. Seeme Aagistant o the extent of
Investmant Co. P, Lid. | Javed Mr. T 15 Croras p.a. plus payment
Abhishek Javeri. of Intarast thereon
Chandra Net Pvt. Lid, Mr. Asit Javeri, | Associals Availing Intemnst and web -
M. Abhishek | Common directors in | related serviges 1o the exient
daveri, Mr. Nitin | both the Companies ::'ailm?ef:i ;’?;?D%a'-:i:;%:;
R. Jant (KMF) ;}Tﬂi ;;hg!fd';i r:‘;z Agsistant io the extent_ of T
_ 1 Crore pa. pius inferest
up capital thereon
Sirix Wireless Sysiems | Mr. Asit Javeri, | Associate Availing IT related & Wireless -
Pt Lid. Mrs. Sasema | Common directors In | Services to the extent of T
Javer, Mr. | both the Companies | 1 Crore p.&. and/or avaliment
Abhishek Javeri. | and / or holding more | of ICD / Financial Assistant fo
than 2% of the paid | the exteniof T 1 Crore p.a.
up capital plus interest therson

Mambers are hereby informed that pursuant (o second proviso of Saction 188 of the Companies Adl, 2013,
no member of the Company shall vote on special resolution fo approve any contract or arrangement which
migy be entered into by the Company, if such memberis a related party.

MNone of the Direclors and the Key Managenal Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Special Resolution(s) except the Directors/KMP mentioned
above,

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the Resolutions as set out at ltem No. 7 in the
accompanying Notice for approval of the members by way of Speclal Resolution(s).

Registered Office ;

Hira Baug, 1" Fioor,

Kasturba Chowk, (C.P. Tank),
Mumbai-400004
CIN:L24110MH1973PLC016688
E-mail: sadhananitro@sncl.com
Date: 18" April, 2015.

By Order of the Board

N.R. Jani
Company Secretary
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BOARD'S REPORT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

)

To the Members of
SADHANANITROCHEM LIMITED

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 42" Annual Report together with Audited Financial
Statemanis for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2015. The Managemant Discussion and Analysis has

also been incorporated inlo this report.
1.FINANCIAL RESULTS

{Tin Lacs)
PARTICULARS STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED
2014-18 2013-14 201418 201314

{12 Moniha) {9 Months) {12 Montha) | {9 Montha)
Hevenus from operations (Net} & Cther 4841 3388 4854 3309
income
Profit before Finance Gost, Depreciation, {319) {33) {355) {108}
Exceptional kem and Tax
Finance Cost {462} {817} {488) {613}
Depreciation {207) {207) {207) {207)
Profitf{Loss) before excaptional item and {988) {817) {1050) {828)
iaxation
Excaptional Hems 1305 1067 1343 1067
Tax Expense 102 {206) 102 {206)
Profit{Loss) afier tax 418 {586) 335 {87}

2. DIVIDEND

in view of the past losses, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the FY 2014-15.
During the vear the unclaimed dividend periaining to the financial year 2006-07 was transferrad to the
investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
The total revenue of your company for the financial year ending 31% March, 2015 has been ¥ 4841 lacs
{PP {9 months) ¥ 3366 lacs) registering an increase of about 8% (annualised).

Tha Company faced liquidity crunch which adversely affected iis operational level. This increasead cost
of production though operating efficiency was in full check.

Prices of raw materials were higher in the first sight months. This affected margins despite improved
operating efficiency and keeping overheads under check.

Your Company enterad into a long term agreement with s customaers for the sale of Chamicals. After
commencing business for months, one of the customers was unabile {o fulfill the contract resulting into
termination of agreement and forfeiting of the advance received.

In spite of Working Capital constraints, the Company has taken the rigorous steps to stream line the
production level for achieving the optimum operating level.

Afterwritien off of the deferred tax, there was profit after tax of ¥ 418 lacs for the year.

3.1 AsperRule 8(1) of Chapter IX - Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 - Report on the performance
and financial position of its wholly owned subsidiary-Anuchem B.V.B.A. is presented here under.
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FINANGIAL HIGHLIGHT OF WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY COMPANY - ANUCHEM B.V.B.A.

Particulars 2014 {in Eurp) 2013 {in Eurg)
Tumover 496.581,38 2.197.015,08
Profit befors Finance Cost, Depraciation and Tax {34.098,02) {11.154,21}
Financial Expenges 1.28581 1.220,75
Dapreciation 0,00 0,00
Profit/{Loss) befors tax expenss {35,383,63} {12.374,88)
Tax Expsnzse 0.00 0,00
Profit{loss) sfter tax {35.383,63) {12.374.98)
4. EXPORTS

Your Company is having siatus of & "STAR EXPORT HOUSE”® granted by Ministry of Commaerce,
Government of India.

Despite recessionary frend and unfair severe price competition from China, the Exports of your
company during the yearwere¥ 2,714 lacs [(P.P.¥ 2,187 lacs (8 Months]]

Exports constituted about 57% of the overall sales (excluding other income). Company's Exports are
well diversified in terms of product range as well as the Countries of Export.

4.1 Export Criented Unit (EOU)

Your Company has one of its plants Registered as an EOQOU with the Development Commissioner,
SEEPZ which was valid upte 31" March, 2015 and the Company has applied for axtension tili 31* May,
2015. Thereafier the Company will de-register EOU Plant status to DTAsiatus.

5. FINANCE
54 Increasein Authorised Share Capital
During the year, the Company has increased iis Authorized Share Capital from¥ 11,00,00,000 to
¥21,00,00,000 by way of addition of 1,00,00,000 Praferance shares of T 10/-each.

5.2 Cumuiative Non Convertible Preference Share
During the year, the Company has issued and aliotted 78,50,000 9% Cumulative Non Convertible
Preference Shares on Private Placement basis 1o its Holding Company — Manekchand Panachand
Trading investment Company Pvi. Lid. against purchase of immovable Properiy being land and
building.

5.3 Deposits
The Company has not accepted deposils from the public falling within the ambil of Section 73 of
Companias Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceplance of Deposits) Rules 2014.

5.4 Partlculars of Loans, Guarantess orinvestments
Details of Loans, Guarantess and Investmentis covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given below :-

Sr. | Particulers Balance az on 31° | Balence as on 31° |
No., Biarch 2015 March 2014
A. | Loans given by the Company - ==
B. | Guaranitess given by the Company - -
C. | investments in foreign Subsidiary and other bodiss 872,982 15,72,219
corporate made by the Company
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CHEMICAL INDUSTRY AND OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS:
Your company is engaged in manufacture of chemical intermediates, heavy organic chemicals and
performance chemicals. india emerged as one of the major source for chemical intermediates. The
industries witnessed high degree of uncertainty and slow down following global economy pattemn. The
industry is dependent on the basic petro-chemicals, prices of which were highly volatile during the vear.
There is sevare price competition in the National and International Market.

Your company is in the industry since last over 41 years.  has a very high degree of operating synergy,
sconomies of scale and high quality standards. The products of your company have diverse uses and
applications in several industries ranging from paper, pharmaceutical, agro chemicals, thermal dyes,
light stabilizer, aerospace dyes and dye intermediates oic. Besides, your company have loval clientele
base, which is well diversified over the World.

The major threat faced by the company are escalating raw material prices, crude oil prices, increasing
interest rate and volatile foreign exchange market.

MARKET AND OUTLOOK

Your company has healthy order book position. Despite continued siowdown in the Global economies
the demand for the products of your company is showing sign of improvement with improved product
pricing coupled with favourable exchange rate. Gradual product price increase, improved operating
margin and control on overheads are expecled fo improve the overall performance.

The Company continued {o focus on cost control at every lavel to improve the operational sfficiency
which alongwith the increased operaling level and upward revision of product prices is expsected {o
improve the margin. The rate of flow of orders is encouraging. Production facilities are realigned to meet
the demand. Your company, barring unforeseen circumstances, expects to further improve the tum-
over and performance.

ENVIRONMENT AND SBAFETY:

The Company is conscious of the imporiance of environmentally clean and safe operations. The
company's policy requires the conduct of all operations in such manner so as to snsure safety of all
concarned, compliance of statutory and industrial reguirements for environmental protection and
conservation of natural resources to the extent possible.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Your company has continuously attached high priority to the R & D Depariment which is engaged in
developing new processes and further improving the exsting processes as an ongoing activity io
enabie your company {0 keep pace with technological advancament and improve opearating sfficiency.

HUMAN RESQURCE/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

Human Resource programs and inffiatives in SNCL are aligned fo meet the business needs. Your
company believes in investing in people io develop and expand their capability. The Company has been
able to creale a favourable work environmeni that molivates performance, customer focus and
inhovation SNCL's siraiegies are based, infer alla, on processes of confinuous leaming and
improvement.

RISKS AND CONCERNS:

Macro-sconomic faciors like the slow down, sluggish demand conditions, monstary policy & fiscal
policy, unforeseen political and social upheavals, natural calamities may affect the business of your
Company as also the industry atlarge.

With competition intensifying in all segments of the industry, increasing the market shares and the
consumerbasa is a continuing challengs.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

Since raw materials form an important component of your company's value chain, cost and availability
of some of the key raw materials like benzene, nitric acid, caustic potash, sulphur based chemicals, iron
powder are an area of concam.

Your Company has however improved processes for belier consumption norms, substituting cheaper
raw materials, converting one of the boilers from furnace cil base to Bagasse base. Your company has
tachnological superiority and strong distribution network.

IS0 CERTIFICATON

Your Company has certification as per IS0 9001-2008 by RINA, IS0 14001:2004 & OHSAS
18001:2007 granied by the certifving body KBS Certification Services Py, Lid. for the devsiopment and
manufaciure of Chemical Intermediates.

INSURANCE
The asseis of your Company are adequately insured. Your Company has also taken out suitable cover
for Public Liability.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

a) During the year under review, M/s. Anuchem Pte. Lid., Singapore ceased to ba the wholly owned
subsidiary of the company. The Company has now only one wholly owned foreign subsidiary viz.
Anuchem B.V.B.A. (Beigium), and the Audited Financial Statements of the said subsidiary are
considered forthe purpose of preparing Consolidated Financial statements.

b) No Company has become/ceased to be a joint venture or associate during the FY 2014-15.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIRADEQUACY

The Company has an adequate Internal Control System commensurate with the size and nature of its
business. The internal audit functions is carried out by a separate firm of Chartered Accountants. The
quarterly audit reports, including Significant audit observations and cormrective aclions thereon, are
presented to the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a vigil mechanism / whiste blower policy which take cognizance of complaints made
and suggestions given by smployses and others. The Company also adopted Risk Assessment
Procadure. The details of the same are mentionsd in the Corporate Govermnance Report.

DIRECTORS

a) All independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as
laid down under Section 149(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement.

b) During the year, Shri R.A. Shroff, Director of the company was expired . The Board has puton
records the invaluable guidance and advice given by him from time to ime during his tenure.

4] During the vear, the Central Govemment has rejected the application made io it for the
appointment and payment of Remuneration to Shri. Nitin R. Jani as Whole Time Director &
Company Secretary. Shri. Jani then resigned from the office of Whole Time Director & Company
Secretary w.e.f. 25" August, 2014. The remuneration paid to him during 01/08/2012 to
25/08/2014 was adjusted against his retirement dues. Considering his association with the
company, exparience and to comply with the requirement of section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013, Shri Jani has been appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company w.ef 15"
Seplember2014.

d) Atthe Annual General Mesting of the Company held on 13" August 2012, Shri. Asit D. Javeri was
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appointed as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect
from 1 September 2012. Hence, a Resolution seeking Mamber's approval for re-appointment of
Shri A.D. Javeri as Chairman and Managing Direcior of the Company for a further period of 3
years with effect from 1* September, 2015 is included in the Notice convening the Annual
General Mesting.

e) Smit. Seema A Javerl, Director, who refires by rotation and being eligible, offers herse!f for re-
appointment. A Resoclution seeking Member's approval for appointment of Smt. SeemaA. Javeri
as Executive Director — Administration for a period of 3 years with effoct from 1% July 2015 is
included in the Notice convening the Annual General Mesting.

17.1  Board Evaluation
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 48 of the Listing Agreement,
the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of ils own performance, the
directors individually as well as the evalualion of the working of its Audit, Nomination &
Remuneration and Compliance Committees. The manner in which the evaluation has been
carried out has been explained in the Corporate Governance Report.

7.2 Remuneration Policy
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee framed a
policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration.
The Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate Govemance Report.

17.3 Meetings
During the year Eight {8) Board Mastings and Six (8) Audit Committee Mestings were convened
and held. The details of which are given in the Corporate Govemancea Report. The intervening
gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The
composition of the Audit Committee as required under Saction 177(8) of the Companies Act,
2013 has besn mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report.

17.4 Appointment/Reslgnation of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
a) During the year, Shri Nitin R. Jani has resigned from the office of Whole Time Direclor
and Company Secretary w.e.f. 25th August, 2014.
b} During the yearthe following were appointed as the KMP:

&l. | Name of KMP Annointed as With effect from
1. | Shil. Sanjesy P Shah Ohief Financial Olfioss (GFO) 13" August, 2014
2. | Bhri. Ntin 8. Jani Company Sscratary 15" Ssptembar, 2014

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and befief and according to the information and explanations obtained by
tham, your Dirsctors maks the following statements in terms of 8sction 134(3)¢) of the Companies Act,
2013

a. thatin the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31" March, 2015, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, ifany,

b. that such accounting policies as mentioned in Note No.1 of the Notes to the Financial Statements
have been sclacted and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made thatare
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Companyas at
31*March, 2015 and of the losses of the Company for the year ended on that date;

¢. that proper and sufficient care has baen taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and otherimegularities;
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d. thatthe annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis;
a. that proper intemal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adeguate
and were operating effectively.
f. that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and
were adequate and operating effectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has enlered inlo a Properly Purchase Agreement with Manekchand Panachand
Trading Investment Co Pvi Lid the Promoter Holding Company for purchase of the Residential
Colony situated at Village Bhuvaneshwar, Taluka Roha, Dist Raigad, against which the Company has
issued Preference shares of the Company on private placement basis. This transaction ison an amm's
iength basis but not in the ordinary course of business of the Company and hence, approval of the
members of the Company under Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 has been obiained. All other
related party fransaciions that were entered info during the financial year were on an arm's length
basis and were in the ordinary course of business. However as a matter of abundant caution, prior
omnibus approval of Board of Directors and Members of the Company has been obtained under
Section 188 of the Companiss Act, 2013 for the transactions which are of a foressen and repstitive
nature. Approval of the Audit Commiliee has been obiained for ali the related parly tranzactions.
There are no materially significant related party iransactions made by the Company with Promoters,
Directors, Key Managerial Personne! or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict
with the interest of the Company.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in subsection {1) of
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the Form ADC-2 is attached as ‘Annexurs |,

AUDITORS

201 Siatutory Audilors
The Company's Auditors, Messrs V. Sankar Aiyar & Co. Chartered Accountants, Mumbai {Firm
Regn. No. 108208W) who retire at the ensuing Annual General Mesting of the Company are
gligible for reappointment. They have confirmed their eligibility under Section 141 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder for reappointment as Auditors of the
Company. As required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the auditors have also
confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of india.

Members® attention is invited to Nots No.31 of the hotes to Accounts with respect to the
observation mads by the Auditors under "Emphasis of Matier” appearing in the Auditors Report
which is self explanatory.

202 Cost Auditors
CostAuditis not applicable to the Company.

20.3 Sscretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s. Makarand M.
Joshi & Co., Company Secretaries in Practice, Mumbal, has been appointed to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report in form MR-3 is annexed
herewith as ‘Annexure il

With respect to the observations, remarks made in the Secretarial Audit Report, the same has
been faken note of and the company is in process o file the relevant forms with the appropriate
authority.
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21.

22.

23,

24,

28,

26.

27.

oo -
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Revised Clause 48 of the Listing Agreement is not mandatory to the Company however, the Company
has voluntarily disclosed the Compliance fo the best exient possible and accordingly the
Management Discussion and Analysis, the Corporate Governance Report, together with the Auditors
Certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Govamance as laid down are attached
alongwith the Annual Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company prepared in accordance with relevant
Accounting Standards (AS) viz. AS 21, AS 23 and AS 27 issued by the Instituls of Chartered
Accountants of india form part ofthis Annual Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGSANDCQUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absomption and forgign exchange eamings
and oulgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as 'Annexure lif’,

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The detalls forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT 9 is annexed herewith as
‘Annexure V',

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There is no Employee drawing Remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed by the Companies Act,
2013. The information required pursuant to Section 187 read with Rule, § of The Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of
the Company, will be provided upon request In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Report and
Accounts are being sent o the Members and others entitied thereto, excluding the information on
employees’ particulars which is available forinspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the
Company during business hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing
Annual General Mesting. If any Member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may
wrile to the Company Secratary in this regard.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS ORCOURTS
There are no significant material orders passed by the Reguletors / Courts which would impact the
going concern status ofthe Company and is fulure operations.
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from the Bankers, Cantral and State Govermnment Departments, customers, vendors, and other
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the Directors place on record their gratitude to the Investors, Clients and Shareholders of the
Company for their support and trust reposed.

For and On Behalf of the Board of Direclors

Place: Mumbai Asit D. Javeri
Date : 16 April, 2015 Chairman & Managing Direclor
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ANNEXURES TO THE BOARD'S REPORT

)

ANNEXURE -1
FORMAOCG-2

Particulars of contracis/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-
section {1) of section 188 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

1 | Details of confracts or arrangements or ransactions not at anw's length basis

Mone

2 | Deiails of contracts or arrangement or iransactions at arm’s length basis

Ag deiailad balow

a) Transactions at armns length basis notin ordinary course of business:-

Mama of iths | Nalwre of
Related Parly | Relationship

Naturs, Matsral Terms, Monelary valus and
Particulars of the contract or arrangement

Datals) of approval
by the Board, if any

Manskchand Holding
Panachand Company

Praperty Purchase Agreament worth T 7,85,00,000
{(Rupees Seven Crores Eighty Five Lakhs only),

Trading against issus of 7850000 8% Cumulative Non
vaeﬁu!éﬁent Co Convertible Preference Shares of T 10/-eachatpar

2711/2014

bi Transactions atarms length basis in the ordinary course of business:-

Nams of the | Nature of
Related Parly Relafionship

Nature, Material Terms, Monstary value and
Particulars of the contract or arrangement

Date(s) of approval
by the Board, # any

Anuchem Wholly Transactions relating o the Purchase / Saie of 27H1/2014
b.v.b.a. Ownied goods io the exient of ¥ 50 Crores p.a. basis.
Belgium Subsidiary
Company
Lifestvle Associaie Avalling Information Techneology, Web related and Z7M2014
Networks ather Services as provided by LNL fo the exient of
Limitad (LNL} ¥ 1 Grore p.a. basis.
Mis Amnigera | Associaie Availing Ticketing and travel Services as provided 27172014
Corporaiion by the Flim o the extent of € 50 Lacs p.a. basis.
Phthalo Asszociaie Transactions relaing to the Purchass / Sale of 2711172014
Calours & goods io the exient of ¥ 5 Crores p.a. basis.
Chemisals (I}
Limited
ANNEXURE-I
FORMMR-3

SECRETARIALAUDITREPORT

For The Financial Year Ended 31 March 2015
[Pursuant to section 2041} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members of
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence {0 gocd corporate practices by Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited {herelnafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted In a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
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Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and retumns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our apinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial vear ended on 31* March , 2015 (Audit
Peariod’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the exient, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hersinafier

‘We have sxamined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained

by the Company for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2015 according io the provisions of:

{H The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

{in The Securities Contracis {(Reguiation)Act, 1958 {SCRA" and the niles made there under;

{iii} The Depositories Act, 1986 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

{iv} Foreign Exchange Management Acl, 1829 and the rules and reguiations made there underto the
extent of Overseas Direct Investment (Foreign Direct invesiment and External Commercial
Borrowings are not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

{v} The following Regutations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
indiaAct, 1992 (‘SEBIAct’):-

{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acqguisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b} The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992,

{c} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009

{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Employse Stock Oplion Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Schems) QGuidelines, 1998 and The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Bensfils) Regulations, 2014 notified
on 28 October 2014 {(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Peried);

() The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debl Securities)
Reguiations, 2008 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(i  The Securilies and Exchange Board of India (Registrars {0 an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents} Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

{g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
{Mot Applicable to the Company during the Audit Perlod); and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Perlod):

We have alzo examined compliance with the appiicable clauses of the following:

)] Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of india {Not notified hence not
applicable to the Company during the audit period).

(i) The Listing Agreemenis entered info by the Company with stock exchanges.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. Subject to the following observations:

1. Under Companies Act 2013 and rules made there under:
+  The Company has not filled following forms
a. MGT-14 for Appointment of Secretarial Auditor & intemal Auditor

b. MGT-14 for Taking Note of Disclosure of Interest of Directors as Directors have not disclosed
theirinterest as required under section 184 (1) of Companies act, 2013
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MGT-14 for Approving Directors Report as required under section 179 (3) of companies act,
2013

MGT-14 for Appointment of Company Secretary

MGT-14 for Approving Audited Financial Results as on 31.03.2014

DIR-12 for Cessation of Mr. Ramesh A. Shroff from the Board,

L2

oo

2. UnderListing Agreement
a. The Company has not intimated Stock Exchange about demise of Mr. Ramesh A, Shroffas
required under clause 30 of listing agresment

We furtherreport that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that tock place during the period under review were carried out in compiiance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors 1o schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailled noles on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except for board mesting held on 25th August, 2014, for
which intimation has been given telephonically to all the Directions & Majority of Directors aftended that
Board Meeting. A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda itemns before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Al decisions at Board Mestings and Commitiee Meelings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the
minutes of the mestings of the Board of Directors or Committas of the Board, as the casa may be.

We further report that there are adguate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.
We further report that during the audit period
1. the company has issued and Allotted 78,50,000 9% Cumulative Non — Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares Having Face Value Of Rs.10/- Each At Par Aggregating To Rs. 7,85,00,000/-
{Rupees Seven Crores Eighty Five Lakh Only) on A Private Placement Basis

2. the company has disposed of one of its wholly owned Toreign subsidiary M/s Anuchem Ple Lid.

Singapore.
For Makarand M. Joshi & Co.
Makarand Joshi
Place: Mumbai ccs NPagtg;;
. : o.
Date: 16 April 2015 P N 2825
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ANNEXURE -ilf

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE
REPORT OF THEBOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988,

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Steps taken for further conversation of Energy:
The Company has taken several measures to conserve and oplimiss the use of energy such as (a) Re-

cycling of Watar (b) Use of Briguettes in placs of Furnace Qi {c}Water harvasting.

impact ofthe above maasures:
The measures stated above would further improve conversation of energy, reduction in water and air
poliution, reduction in cost of production etc.

During the year under review there is no Capltal Expenditure incurred In respect of conversation of
Benergy.

FORM-A : FORM OF DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION

31.03.2015 31.03.2014
12 Monihse 2 Months

1. Electricity
a) Purghased Unit in kwh 2018804 1614073

Tolal amount (2} 1,72,10,284 1,28,01,422

Rate/Linit () a.52 7.81
b} Own genseration

Through Diesel Ganerator Units in kwh 21,434 17488

Unit per liter of diesel oil {lkwh) 2.99 2.15

Liter of Diessl 7169 8138

Total amount {7) 8,37,044 3,095,878

Cost/Units (€) 38.05 2264
2. Furnace Off

Quantity (KL} §37.400 586.715

Total Amount {Z) 1,87,72,848 23725861

Average Rate (F/MT) 3B783.84 41865.80
3. Brigueties

Cuantity (MT} 2659.385 1780.54

Total Cost (7} 1,79,83,248 1,25,24,278

Average Rate {T/MT) 8762.00 8994.71
4. Water

Quantity (M3) 54838 55808

Total Cost (F) 18,584,332 18,12,413

Average Rate (7/M3) 34.55 34.26

B. TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION

FORM-B : FORM OF DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO ABBORPTION OF
TECHNOLOGY

RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT

1. Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the Company. The R&D efforts of the Company are
directed towards process development, energy conservalion, Pollulion control, efficiency
improvement and quality up-gradation.
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2.

4.

- o =
Benefits derived as a result ofthe above R&D.

R&D efforts have resulted in development of process for several chemical intermediates, the
commercial production of which are commencead, besides improving quality and operating
efficiency of exdisting products.

Future Plan of Action
To continus R&D in the relevant areas 1o achisve its banefits.

Expenditure on R&D

31.03.2018 31.03.2014

12 Monthe 8 Months

{a) Capital ] 25,250
{b} Recuring 33,417,588 20,61,534
Total 33,17,568 28,856,784

{c} Total R&D expenditure as a % of lotal tumover 0.68% 0.87%

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

1.

Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation.

The Company has commenced production of some items of chemical intermediates, the process for
which has been developed in R&D.
Benefits derived as a result of the above efforls e.g. product improvement, cost reduction, product
development, import substitution, etc. There is improvement in quality and yield of the product and
has widened product range for marksting.
in case of imported technology (imported during the last 5§ years reckonsd from the beginning ofthe
financial year). No imports of technology during last 5 vears.

¢. FOREIGNEXCHANGEEARNINGSARDOUTGO

a)

b)

Activities relating to exports, iniliative taken lo increase exports, development of new export
markets for products and services and export plans.

The Company is exporting about 70% of its chemical intermadiate production. Thes total sxports
during the year were ¥ 2,714 Lacs (P Y ¥ 2,197 Lacs). The Company is putting ali its efforis totap
naw export markets and widen its clientele base.

Total Foreign Exchange used and earned. (inT)

31.03.2018 31 03.2014
12 Months g Months
(i} Used:
a) Imports (CIF) 91,38,870 32474010
b) Other expenditure §,33,084 1,198,740
(il Earnsd:
Exports (F.O.B) 26,36,81.881 20,98,688,055
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ANNEXURE -IV

FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31*March, 2015
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN L24110MH1973PLC016698

Registration Date 21/07/1973

Name of the Gompany SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED

Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company having Share Capital

Address of the Registered office and contact details Hira Baug, 1st floor Kasturba chowk {C.P. Tank)
Mumbai 400004

Whether listed company Yos

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and

Transfer Agent, if any

Link Intime India Pvt. Lid
GC-13,
L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup, Mumbal-400 078.
Telephone No. 022-2586 3838

Fax No. (022-25946969.

E-mail : mt.helpdesk® linkintime.co.in

Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Manufacture of Chemical Intermediates, Heavy Organic Chemicals and Performance Chemicals.

All the business activilies contributing 10 % or more of the total tumover of the company

SR. | Name and Description of maln products /| NIC Code of the | % io total turnover of the
NO | services Product/ service company
1. | META AMINO PHENOL 3009 53.02
2. NITROBENZENE 3009 27.97
Iil. | PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
SR. | NAME AND ADDRESS OF | CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of | Applicable
NO | THE COMPANY SUBSIDIARY | shares | Section
1 ASSOCIATE | held
1. | Manekchand Panachand | U67120MH1985PTC037397 Holding 65% 2(46)
Trading Investment Co P Ltd Company
2. | Anuchem B.V.B.A., Belgium Not Applicable Foreign 100% 2(87)
Subsidiary
3. | Lifestyle Networks Ltd. U72900MH2005PTC155530 Associale NIL 2(6)
4. | Phthalo Colours & Chemicals | U24110MH1991PTCO063399 Associate NIL 2(6)
{l) Ltd.
5. | M/s Amnigera Corp. Not Applicable Asgsociate NIL 2(6)
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lll. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i} Category-wise Share Holding
Cat | Category of Shareholding as on 1st Aprll, 2014 Shareholding as on 31 March 2015 %
ego | Shareholders Chang
y e
Cod during
e the
year
Demat Phy- Total % of Demat Phy- Total % of
slcal Total sical Total
shar share
es ]
n {n
A PROMOTERS
(1) | Indian
(a) | Individuals/ Hindu 564248 - 5684248 8.13 5684521 - 564521 8.14 .01
Undivided Family
{b) | Central Government/ - - - - - - 5 = %
State Government(s)
(c) | Bodies Corporate 5960611 - 5960611 | 64.78 | 5960611 - 5960611 | 64.78 -
{d) | Financial Institutions/ - - - - - - - - -
Banks
(e) | Any Other (specify) - - - - - - - = =
Sub-Total (A)1) 6524857 - 6524857 | 70.92 | 6525132 - 6525132 | 70.92 -
(2) | Forelgn
{a) | Individuals (Non- - - - B - - = s s
Regident Individuals/
Foreign Individuals)
{b) | Bodles Corporate - - - - = & = = &
(¢} | Institutions - - - s = = - - -
(d) | Qualified Foraign - - - B - = w = z
Investor
(8) | Any Other (spacify) - - - - - - H = =
Sub-Total (A}2) - - - - - - . - .
Total Shareholding
of Promoter and
Promoter Group 6524857 - 6524857 | 70.82 | 6525132 - 6525132 | 70.82 -
(A)= (AN1)+{AX2)
B PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING
{1) | Institutions
{a) | Mutual Funds/ UTI 360 200 560 0.01 380 200 560 0.01 -
(b) | Financial Instiutions/ 482 159 621 0.01 462 159 821 0.01 -
Banks
(¢} | Central Govemment/ - - - - - 2 = = =
State Govemment(s)
(d) | Ventura Gapital - - - - - - - = =
Funds
{e) | Insurance Companiea - - - 3 : B - = m
1} Foreign Institutional - - - B - - - - -
Investors
{g) | Foraign Venture - - - - - & u z =
Capital Investors
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Qualified Forsign
Invastor

Any Oihar {speciy)

Sub-Total (BX1)

358

1181

0.02

822

359

1181

.02

i~

2

Non-Institutions

=

Bodlas Corporate

225368

1168

228537

2.48

248627

1168

247786

2.89

0.23

{5}

Individuais

{I} Individuais hoiding
nominai share capital
upto As.] akh

1314548

220802

1535550

16.68

1220402

210880

1431282

15.56

{1.38)

{ii} Individuals holding
nominal share capital
in excess of As.1 Iakh

855051

42750

887801

758

788224

103628

BE58E2

267

208

(e

Qualified Forsign
Irvastor

a

Any Othar (specify)

Other Diractors' &
relatives

28322

1.20

34659

20808

0.80

.80

Non Rssident indians
{Repat)

5484

0.46

291583

5494

34847

.38

{0.08)

MNon Rasident Indians
{Mon-Repat)

1851

1851

0.02

Clearing Members

4844

4844

0.05

Trusi

Hindu Undivided
Family

11808

8777

8777

.08

Market Malar

100

100

Sub-Total (B}2)

2378156

298837

2674r92

2332637

2878517

Total Public
Shareholdlng (B)=
{B){1:{B)2)

23r89TT

2876973

2333369

2575698

23.08

TOTAL (AJHB)

8301834

9200830

8358481

160

©)

Shares haid by
Custodians and
against which
Denosiiory Receipts
hanes nan imgusd

GRAND TOTAL

L]

2801834

286385

S250830

100

8200830

160
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1) Shareholding pattern of the Promoters
8. | Shareholders’ Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end of the % change
No | Name beginning of the year yoar in share
holding
during the
year
No. of % of Y%oof No. of % of %of
Shares Total Shares Shares Total Shares
shares | Pledged shares Pledged /
/ encumber
encumb ad to total
orod to shares
total
shares
Manekchand
Panachand Trading
1 I iment Co. P. 5960611 | 64.78 59.78 5960611 64.78 59.78 0.00
Lid.
2 | AsltD. Javerl 379678 412 0.00 379953 413 0.00 0.01
3 | Molina D. Javeri 79661 0.86 0.00 79661 0.86 0.00 0.00
4 | Abhishek A. Javeri 37100 040 0.00 37100 040 0.00 0.00
5 Sadhana Rallv Jaln 29190 0.32 0.00 29190 0.32 0.00 0.00
6 Chandrika D. Javeri 29190 0.32 0.00 29190 0.32 0.00 0.00
7 | Seema A. Javer 7327 0.08 0.00 7327 0.08 0.00 0.00
8 | Anuradha A. Javeri 2100 0.02 0.00 2100 0.02 0.00 0.00
TOTAL 6524857 | 70.91 59.78 8525132 70.92 58.78 0.01
[[)] Change In Promoter's Shareholding
Shareholding as on 317 March | Cumulative Sharsholding during the
2014 year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 6524857 7092
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Date No
Promoters Share holding during 08.05.2014 25
the year specifying the reasons for 14.06.2014 o5
increase / decrease {8.g. allotment 16.05.2014 25
Ie :::e)l:rlsfer ! bonus/ sweat aquity 10.06.2014 25
Purchase of shares from the 01.07.2014 50
open market 27.08.2014 50
16.02.2015 25
23.02.2015 25
286.02.2015 25
At the End of the year 6525132 70.92
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[17] Sharsholding patlern of the top 10 sharsholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs
and ADRs)
For Each of the Top | Shareholding a3 on | Incraass f Dacreass in Shane Cumulative
10 Sharsholders &s on 31™ March holding during the year Shareholding
2014 gpecifying the reasons for during the year and
increase / decrssss (8.0, Balance a2 & 31%
allotment / trengler / bonug / March, 2015
sSwoat aguily sic
No. of % of olal | increase | Decrease | Reasen | No. of % of total
shares shares of | {No of {No of shares shares of
the shares) sharas) the
company company
1 Veena K Jagwani 173773 1.8886 - - - 173773 1.8886
2 Vinad Kumar Ol 108258 1.1853 - - - 106288 3115853
3 Sangeetha § 97000 1.05843 1491 - Transfar | 98401 1.0705
4 Upadsh K Kaushal 42750 0.4848 - - - 42750 0.4848
L Harsh Amit Mehia 135286 0.1470 18474 - Transfer | 33000 0.3587
& Amit M Mehia 5888 0.0840 24477 - Transfer | 27368 0.2874
7 Mohak Amit Mahta 10138 01102 15861 - Transfer | 26000 0.2826
8 Foujdar Sudhakar [y v 25000 - Transfer | 25000 02717
g E Ramchandra 20200 0.2198 - - - 20200 0.2198
Kamath
10 | Kalpesh Vora 18725 0,2035 - - - 18725 02035
¥ Shargholding of Diractore and Key Managerlal Porsonnel
&1 | Name Sharehoiding as on | Increase / Decrease In Share Cumulative
No as on 31 Mareh holding during the year specliving | Shareholding during
2014 the raasons Tor Increass / decrasas | the yesr and
{a.g. alintment / irensfer / bonus / Balance as at 317
swesl eguity elc March, 2015
MNo. of % of total | Increase | Decrease | Reason No. of % of total
shares shares of | (Mo of Mo of sharas shares of
the shares) shanes) the
company company
A | MARECTORS
1 Agi D. Javer 3786878 4.1285 275 - Purchase 378853 4.1285
Chairman &
iManaging Director
2 | Arvind R. Doshi 12498 0.13588 - - - 12498 0.1358
Mon-Exacitive
Director
3 | Privam 8. Jhaveri 100 0.0011 - - - 100 0.0011
Man-Txocutive
Director
4 | Dhirendra M. Shah 5000 0.0543 - - - 5000 0.0543
Non-Executive
Dirsctor
& | Pradeop M. Dagal 2 3] 100 - Purchass 100 0.0011
Mon-Execulive
Director
6 | Seema A. Javer 7az7 0.0798 - = - 7327 0.0796
Non-Execistive
Dirsctor
7 | Abhishelk A. Javeri 37100 0.4032 - = - 37100 4002
Non-Executive
Director
B | KMp
1 Nitin R. Jani 43142 0.4888 - - - 43142 0.4688
Company Secretary
2 | Sanjeev P. Bhah 225 0.0024 - - - 225 0.0024
Chiaf Financial
Officer
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¥. INDEBTEDNESS {inT}
Sacursd Loan Ungscured Dsposits Total
excluding deposils Loans Indebledness
indabiadness at the baginning
of the Anancie! year
i} Principal amount 15,44,29,857 14,890,073 21,16,561,593 36,75.71,223
#f) interest due but not pald - - = -
i) Interast accrued but not due - - - -
Total {i + & + i)} 15,44,28,557 14,80,073 21,16,51,583 38,75,71,223
Changes In  Indebledness
during the financial Year
Addition - . - -
{Reduction) {1,10,61,638) - 8,35,06 418) {8,48,67 454}
Net Change {1,10,81,038) - 8,36,06.418) {8.48,57,454)
indabladness at the end of the
financial ysar
i} Principal amount 14,33,68,521 14,850,073 12,80,45,175 27,28,03,768
i) Interast due but not pald - - - -
fil}Interest accrusd but not dus - - - -
Total {§ « B+ 1B 14,33.68,521 14,850,673 128045175 27,29,03,769
¥l. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A, REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR / WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR/ MANAGER:
Sr. | Particulars of Remunaration Total
No
Amount
Hame: Shrl AD, Javer], Chalrman & Managing Director 4
1. | Gross salaty
44,48,950
{2} Salary as per provisiong contained in section 17(1) of the Income-iax Act, 1981
(&} Value of perquisites o/s 17{2) Income-tax Act, 1861
{c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act. 1861
2 | Stock Option -
3 | Sweat Equity -
4 | Commiagion
- a8 % of profit -
- othars, spacify - (Guarantee Commission) 24,060,000
5 | Others -
Total {4) 68 48 950
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B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:
8r. | Particulars of Remunaration Name of Directors Total
Mo Amount
Arvind Priyam DA Pradeep T
Doshi Jhaver Shah Dasal
1. | Independsnt Dirsclors
Fee for atiending board / 70,000 62,000 82,000 15,000 2,08,000
comgmitise mestings - — — - -
Commission Others, ploase speoify . - - - .
Toial {1) 70,000 €2,000 62.000 15,000 2,098,000
Seema Abhishiek
Javer Javari
2 | Gther Non-Exscutive Direciors
Fee for attending board / committes meetings 30,000 30,000 60,000
Commigsion - - -
Others, pleass spacily - - -
Tolal {2) 30,000 30,000 60,000
Total (Bl={1+2) 2,688,000
Ceiling as per the Act being 1% of the Net Profit 4.1 lacalpp.)
€. BEMUNERATION TO KMP
gr. Particulars of Remunerstion Kay Managerial Parsonnel
Na {ZIn lzes)
GEO ;s GFO Total
1. Gross salary
(&) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) - 31.33 10.55% 41.88
of the incoma-tax Act, 1861
{0} Value of parguisites ws 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1861 = - - =
{c} Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) income- - - - -
tex Act, 1961
2 Slock Option - - - -
3 Bweat Cquity - - - -
4 Commission
- 88 % of profit - - - -
- othors, specily... - - . -
5 Cthers, please specily - - - -
TOTAL - 31.33 10.55 41.88
* With eflect from 13/08/2014
Vil. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Section of the | Brlat Detalls of Penglty/ | Authorlly | Appeal mads,if
Companies PunizhmentComp any {give
Act Description | ounding foes | [RD/NCLT | Detalls)
imposed FCOURT]
Company & Dhoclors
Penatty il [ 1] [ Bl il
Punishment Mil Nt Nit Nit Mil
Compounding NE B ] ] ]
Cther Olficers In Default
Panally Nl il Nit il il
Punishment L 1] [ {1] 1 1 1]
GCompounding NE L] 511 il [ 1]
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

)

Revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is not mandatory to the Company. However, the Company has
voluntanly disclosed the Compliance fo the best extent possible and accordingly the Corporate Governance
Report, together with the Auditors Certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
laid down are presented in the Report on Corporate Governance for the yearended 31%March, 2015.

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:
SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED believes that transparent accounting policies, appropriate
disclosures norms, best-in-class Board practices and consistently high standards of corporate conduct
towards its stakeholders are essential for sustained corporate growth.
Corporate Governance is about commiiment fo values and ethical business conduct. The Reporton the
Comorate Governance is to fulfill this commitment. An Organization is able to altract investors and
enhance the trust and confidence of all stakeholders by following the best governance practices.

Our Govemance philosophy is based on the following :-

Managementis the trustee of the Sharsholders capital and not the owner.

*  Provide an enabling environment fo harmonize the goals of maximizing stakeholder value and
maintaining a customer centricfocus.

% # &

*  Satisfy the spirit of the law and not just the letter of the law.
The Company's philosophy on Corporate Govemanes is thus concerned with the ethics, values and
morals of the Company and its directors, who are expecied to act in the best interests of the Company
and remain accountable io shareholders and other beneficiaries for their action.

2. BOARDOFDIRECTORS:
Composition of the Board and Directorship heid in other Companies as on 31% March, 2015

Have a simple and transparent corporate structure driven solely by business neads.
Communicate externally, in a truthful manner, about how the Company is running internally.
Make clear distinction betwsen personal convenience and corporate resources.

Be transparent and maintain high degree of disclosure levels in all faceis of ifs operations.

Sr. | Name ofthe Promotes/ independent Mo, of Mo, of othar culside
No | Director(s} Exacutive / Non-Executive outside Commiites
Direciorship positions heid (%)
Chairman Mamber
1 Mr. Asit D. Javeri Promotes - Executive Chairman 16 4 4
& Managing Director
2 hir. Arvind R. Dosghi indapandsnt - Non-Exscutive 2 - 1
3 Mr. P. 8. Jhaverl Independent - Non-Executive 11 1 3
4 Mr. D.M. Shah Independsant - Non-Exscutive - -
& Mr. A A, Javer Fielated to Shri A.D. Javeri - - -
Non-Exgsutive
8 Mr. P.N. Desal Indapendsnt - Non-Exacutive 1 - -
7 Smi. Ssema A. Javeri | Rslated to Shri A.D. Javeri - 3 - -
Non-Executive

{*} In other Limited Companies (including Private Limiled Companies) / Foreign companies.
Oniy membership of audit committes and shareholders / Investors Grievance Commitiee

are considerad.
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3. DIRECTORS PROFILE:

Shri Asit D, Javeri (DIN : 00268114) aged 58 years, is a Science graduate from Mumbai University.
He is S/o {Late) Shri Dhankumar T. Javeri, founder Chairman of the Company.

He joined company in December 1884 as a Director of the company and in January 1985, he was
appointed as the Managing Director. Prior to joining the company he had experience of 8 years of
running chemical company. He has baan associated with the company for more than 30 years.

At present Shri Asit D. Javeri is Executive Chairman & Managing Director of the Company. He is
promoter of the company and holds 379953 Equity Shares of the coimpany as on 31* March, 2015.

Name of the Companies Mame of the Companies iInwhich he iz e
he holds Directorshin Mambar of the Conmmiites of ihe Board
1. Premisr Limted Sadhana hliro Cham Limies
Iredian Exdtractions Limibed Share Transfer Cormmittea-Member (Exacutive)
Phthale Colours & Chemicals {1} Lid. Promier Limitad
Lifestyie Net Works Lid. Stakeholders Relafionship Commitiee - Chairman (Non
Anughem b.v.b.a., Balgium Executive)

Nomination & Remuneration Commities, Audit Commitiss-

Member {Non Executive)

Indian Exiraciions Limited

Audit Commiites, Nomination & Remuneration Commities
Swkeholders Relationship Commiltee — Chainman {No|
Exscutive)

Phthelo Colours & Chemicals {f) Limited

Audit Committsa-Member (Non Exacutive)

Shri Arvind R. Doshi {DIN : 00015293) aged 69 years, is a Civil & Sanitary Engineer from VJTI,
Mumbai and Diploma in Business Management.

He joined company on 17" September, 1974 as a Director. He has been associated with the company
for more than 40 years. At present Shri Arvind R. Doshi is Executive Chairman of PAE Lid,

He has a wide experience in industries like Engineering & Automobiles since 1985, He has received
Prestigious Dadabhai Nargji International award for Excelience & Achievement in 1989, Also he has
besn awarded Samaj Ratna by Mahamastaka Abhishek Commities 20068. Shri Arvind R. Doshi is
holding 12488 Equity Shares of the company as on 317 March, 2015.

Investment Company Put. Ltd.
Chandma Net Private Limited
Strix Wirsless Systermnz Pyt Ltd.
Strix Systern inc. USA

2
3
4
5.
8. Marnskehand Panachand Trading
7
8
9.
10. AHANA Inc. USA

Nams of the Companios Narms of the Companies in which heis a
he holds Directorship Member of the Commiites of the Board
i. PAE Limited Sadhana Miirc Chem Limlted

2. PAE Renswables Pvi. Lid. Nomination & Remuneration Commiites-Chairnan (Non Executiva)
Audit and Stakeholders Relationship Gommities -Member

{Non Execulive)

PAE Limited

Stakeholders Relationship Commitlas-Member (Exacutive)
Mr. Privam 8. Jhaveri {DIN: 60045038} aged 81 years. He is 8 Commerce graduate and having rich
experience in Chemical Indusiry. He is associated with Nanavati Group of Companies and joined
Sadhana as a Director from 11" March, 1888, He is holding 100 Equity Shares of the Company as on
31"March, 2015.

Name of the Comgpanies Name of the Companies iInwhich he lz a

e holds Directorahip Momber of the Commitias of the Bosrd

1. Phihalo Colours & Chemicals (i) Lid. Sadhana Nilro Chem Limied

2. Indian Exiractions Limited Nomination & Remuneration Commiltee & Audit Commiltes

3. Excsl indusiries Limied — Mamber (Non Executive)

4. Lifestyle Net Works Lid. Siakeholders Relafionship Commifise - Chairman (Non

5. Nanavat Spscialty Chemicals Pyvl. Lid. Exacutive)

6. MNanavall Sons Private Limiied Indian Extractions Limied

7. Sonera Investments Private Limited Share Transfer Committee-Member (Execulive)

8. SonsgaTrades & investments Pvi Lid. Phthato Colours & Chamicals {f) Limited

9. Medchem Technologles Put. Lid. Audit Committes-Chalrman (Executive)

10. Nanavati Chamax Privats Limiled Exesll indusiries Limiad

11. Nanavati Elacironics Private Limited Audit and Nomination & Remunsration Commiltea-Member
{Non Executive)
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Mr. Dhirendra M. Shah {(DIN : 00360008} aged 69 years. He is Commerce and Law graduate having
experience of 47 years as Advocate-Tax Consultant. He jolned the company as a Director from 297 July,
2002, He is holding 5000 Equity Shares of the company as on 31" March, 2015,

Name of the Companiss Name of the Compsaniss inwhichhe is s

he holds Direciorship Member of the Commilties of ths Board

1. Faberge Finance Sarvices Pvi. Lid. Sadhana Nire Chem Limited

2. Mangaldas Damodardas Audit Committee-Chairman (Non Exscutive)

Investment Private Limited Nomingtion & Remunerafion Commitiee - Member (MNon

Exsoulive}
Stakehoiders Relationghip Committas - Mermber  (Non
Executive)

Shrl Pradesp N. Desal (DIN : $1602842) aged 53 years, He is Chemical Enginesr. He joined the
company as a Dirgctor from 12" February, 2013, He is holding 100 Equity Shares of the company as on
31*March, 2015.

Nams of the Companiss MName of the Companles Inwhich he lsa
he holds Direciorship Member of the Commitiee of the Board
1. Delta Hitech Coatings Privats Lid. -

Shri AbhishekA. Javeri (DIN : 00273030} aged 33 vears. He is son of Mr. Asit D. Javeri, Chairman and
Managing Direcior of the Company. He is B.A. in Economics from North Western University, USA. He
joined the company as a Director from 24" January, 2007. He is holding 37100 Equity Shares of the
company as on 31* March, 2015.

Name of the Companies Name of the Companiles Inwhich hels s
he holds Dirsciorship Member of the Committes of the Board
Lifestyie Networks Lid., -

Chandra Net Private Limited,
Sirlx Wirslsss Systerns Pvi. Lid,
Strix System Inc., USA,
Manekchand Panachand Trading
Investment Co. Pyl Lid,

8. AHANA Inc USA

Smt. Seama A. Javer! {DIN: §1768838) aged 57 vears. She ls a B.Sc.. She has ah experience of 11
years in Administration. Sha joined the company as a Director from 13" February, 2014. Sheis holding
7327 Equity Shares ofthe company as on 31 March, 2015.

Nane of the Companies Naune of the Companies in which he s &

he holds Dirsctorshinp tamber of the Commities of ihe Board

1. Lifesivie Networks Lid., -

2. Mangkchand Panachand Trading -
invastment Co. Pvi. Lig,

3. Strix Wireless Systemns Pt Lid, -

s

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE DIRECTORS::

During the Financial Year 2014-15,

a) Eight Meetings of Board of Directors were held on 27" May, 2014, 13" August, 2014, 25" August,
2014, 12" September, 2014, 14" November, 2014, 27" November, 2014, 11" February, 2015 & 25"
March, 2015.

b) LastAnnual General Mesting (AGM)was held on 12" September, 2014.

c) Exira Qrdinary General Meeting (EOGM)was heid on 29" December, 2014.

The Attendance of Directors at the Board Mestings, LastAGM and EOGM were as under -
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Hame of Dirsctor Board AGH EQGM
Mr. Agit . Javeri 8 Yes Yes
Mr. Arvind R. Doshi 8 Yeag Yes
Mr. Privam S. Jhaveri 7 Yes No
Mr. D04, Shah 7 Yos No
Mr. Abhishek A, Javeri 8 Yes No
Mr. Pradeep N. Desal 3 Mo No
Smit. Seemna A. Javen 8 No Mo

BOARDPROCEDURE :

Board mesls once in quarter wherein they review quarterly performance and financial resulls. The
Board mestings are genarally scheduled well in advance and the nofice of each masting is given in
writing to each Director. All the items on the agenda are accompanied by note giving comprehensive
information on the related subject. The agenda and relevant notes are sent in advance separately fo
each of dirsctors and only in exceptional cases the same is tabled at the meeting. The Board is also free
o recommend the inclusion of any method for discussion in consultation with the Chairman. The
information as specified in Annexure 1A io the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is regularly made
available to the Board. The minutes of the Board mesting circulated in advance to all directors and
confirmed at subsequent meeting. The minutes of audit commitles and other commitiees of the board
are circulated in advance to all directors regularly place before the board.

AUDITCOMBMITTEE :
As required ufs 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreament, the Board has constituted Audit Committee which consists of the following Direclors.

¥r. D.M. Shah Chalirman Non-Exscutive, Indepandent
Mr. Anvingd R. Doshl Member Nan-Executlve, Indepandent
Mr. Privam 8. Jhaveri Member Non-Executive, Independent

Powers of the Audit Committes:

The Audit Committee shall have the authority to investigate into any matter that may be prescribed

under Company Law for the time being in force and within its terms of referencs.

Role of the Audit Committes, inter-alia, includes the following =~

1. Ovarsight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is comrect, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommending o the Board the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacementor
removal of the stalutory auditors and the fixation of audit fees.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other servicas rendered by the statutory auditors.

4, Reviswing with management the annual financial statements befors submission fo the Board, for
approval with particular referencato:

Matters required being included in the Director's Responsibility Statement.

Changes, any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons forthe same.

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on exercise of judgment by management.

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

Compliance with Listing and other legal requirements relating to financlal statements.

Disclosure of any related party transactions.

. Qualifications in draft audit report.

5. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.

6. Reviewing with the management performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems.

7. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the intemal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the depariment, reporting sfructure
coverage and fraguency of internal audit.

@mpapo
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8. Discussions with internal auditors any significant findings and foliow up thereon.

8. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature
and reporting the matteric the Board.

10. Discussions with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audil discussion io ascertain any area of concem.

11. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends} and creditors.

12. Carrying out any otherfunction as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

Tha Audit Committes shall mandatorily review the following information.

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and resulls of operations ;

2. Statement of significant related parly transactions (as defined by the audit commiiles),
submitted by Management ;

3.  Managementletters/letiers ofinternal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors ;

4. Intemal auditreports relating to internal control waakness ; and

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be
subject to review by the Audit Commiitee.

Mr. V. Mchan and Mr. Arvind Mohan, Partner of the firm of Statutory Auditors and Mr. Mayur R. Shah,
Propristor of firm of Intemal Auditor, have been permanent invitees to the Audit Commities Mestings
besides Chairman & Managing Director, Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer aliended most
of the meeting of the Audit Committes as invilee.

Dunng the year, the Audit Committee, inits meetings, discussed among other things, the fullowing :
Reviewed with management, quarterly, haif yearly and annual financial statemenis before
submission o the Board.

*  Discussed with the managsment and the internal and statutory auditors findings in the internal
audit raports.

*  Deliberated on the applicability, compliance and impact of various Accounting Standards and
guidelines issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time.

* Reviewed the Company's Financial and Risk Management Policies and Audit Raports covering
operational, financial and other business risk areas.

The Chalrman of the Audit Committes has briefed the Board of Direclors, about the Audit Commiftees
observations on various issues discussed at its meetings. Minutes of the Audit Commitiee Meetings are
aiso circulated fo ali the Board Members along with agenda of the subsequenit meeting.

Al the suggestions / recommendations of the Audit Commiliee during the financial year 2014-15, have
been accepted by the Board of Directors.

The Financial decisions of the Company ars taken by the Chairman & Managing Director, Mr. A.D.
Javeri at the Board of Directors Meeting.

The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committes at the Meating held on 27" May, 2014,
13" August, 2014, 12" Sepiember, 2014, 14" November, 2014, 27" November, 2014 & 11" February,
2015are as foliows
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Narne Date of Nen-Executive / Independent Murnbers of Meetings |
Appoiniment Held Attended
Mr. D.M. Bhah 29th Anrit 2008 Non-Executive - indspendent 8 8
Mr. Arvind R. Doshi 25t april 2008 MNon-Executivs - Independent 8 8
Mr. Priyam 8. Jhaveri 2oth Aprii 2008 MNon-Executive - independent 8 8

The previous Annual General Meeting was held on 12" September, 2014 and it was attended by
Mr. D.M. Shah, Chairman of the Audit Commitize.

RISK MANAGEMENT :

The Board takes responsibility for the total process of risk management in the organisation. Results of
the risk assessments and residual risks are presented to the Senior Management and the Audit
Commiitee members. The Management is accountable for the integration of risk management
practices into the day to day activities. The scope of the Audit Committes includes reviaw of the
Company's financial and risk management policies. The Audit Commitiee reviews the Audit Reports
covering operational, financial and otherbusiness risk areas.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE :
The Stakeholder Relationship Committes consists of the following Directors:

Mr Privam B. Jhaveri Chairman

Mr_Arvind R. Doshi Member

Mr DM, Shah Mambesr
Terms of Reference

* Review the existing investors Redressal System and suggest measures forimprovement.

¢ Review the report of Registrars and Shara Transfer Agents about investor's grievancas and follow
up for the necessary action taken for redressal thereof.

* Suggest improvement in investor's relations.

*  Consider and fake on record the Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary certifying that the
aggregate number of equity shares held in depositories and in physical form tally with the total
number of shares issued, listed and admitted share capital.

The attendance record of each member of the Stakeholder Relationship Commitiee at the Meeting held
on 277 May, 2014 isas follows

MName Date of Non-Exscutive / indapendent Numbers of bMeetings
Appoiriment Held Attended
kir Arvind R, Doshi ogih April 2008 Non-Exscutive / Independent 1 1
Mr Privam 8. Jhaveri 20th April 2008 Non-Executive / indepandend 1 i
Mr D.0M. Shah 25" Auguet, 2014 Non-Executive / indapendent 1 R

Statement of the various complainis recsived and cleared by the Company during the period
ended 31" March, 2015

Sr. | Nature of Request Recelved | Cleared Panding
Naoy. {Nes.) {Nos.)
1 Non Recsipt of shars carlificate (8) — Transfer 1 1 1]
2 | Non Roeceipt of Dividend / Interest / Redermpticn Warrant 4 4 [4]
3 | Non Receipt of Annual Report 1 1 4]
Total (] € ]
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There are two pending legal matters, in which the Company has been made a party, before any other
Court{s}/ Consumer Forum(s) elc., on Investors grisvances,

All share transfer and correspondence thereon are handled by the Company's Registrars and Share
Transfer Agents viz. Link Intime Private Limitaed, C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg,
Bhandup, Mumbai 400 078.

Mr. Nitin R. Jani, Company Secretary, has been appointed as the Compliance Officar, as required by the
Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange. Hs has besn entrusted
the task of overseeing the Share Transfer work done by the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents and
attending o grievances of the Shareholders and Investors intimated to the Company directly or through
SEBI and Stock Exchanges. All complaints/grievances intimated during the year have been resocived.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE :
The Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee shall have the authority to Investigate into any matier that
may be prescribed under Company Law for the time being in force and shall alse comply with the terms
of reference as specilied herein as under;
1. The Nomination & Remuneration Committes shall have mestings periodically as it may deem fit.
2.  The Nomination & Remuneration Commitiae shall invite such of the executives to be present at the
meetings of the Commitiee required by it.
3. The Nomination & Remuneration Comimittes shall have the following powers and functions:
a. Torecommend to the Board, the terms and conditions of appointment of key Management
personnel.
b. Toseekinformationfromanyemployse.
¢. Toobtain outside legal or other professional advice.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee lays down the criteria for performance evaluation of
independent directors and other directors, Board of Directors and Committees of the Board of Directors
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Direclors comprises of the following key
areas:

i. Aftendance of Board Meetings and Board Commiftes Meetings

ii. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations

iii. Strategic perspectives orinputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance

iv. Providing perspectives and feadback going bevond information provided by the management

v. Compitment to shareholder and other stakeholder interesis

The svaluation involves Seif-Evaluation by the Board Member and subseguently assessment by the
Board of Directors. Amember of the Board will not participate in the discussion of his / her evaluation.

REMUNERATIONPOLICY

The Nomination and Remuneration Commities has laid down the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive atiribules and independence of a person propossd {o be appointed as a director and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial
parsonnel and other employees.

This policy ensures that—

(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

(b} relationship of remuneration fo performance is clear and meeis appropriate performance
benchmarks; and
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{c) remuneration to direclors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objeclives appropriate to
the working of the company and its goals.

The remuneration policy of the Company is directed towards rewarding performances based on review
of achievements on a periodic basis and is in consonance with the existing industry practice.

The Nomination & Remunsration Commiites consists of the following Directors.

Mr. Arvind B. Doghi Chairman Non-Exesutive - Independant
Mr. Privam 8. Jhaveri Member Non-Exscutive - Independant
Mr. DA, Bhah Member Non-Executive - Indepandeant

Aftendance record of the Members
The aftendance record of each member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee at the Meeting
held on 27" May, 2014 & 12" Septamber, 2014 are as follows :

Mame Dats of Nor-Exscutive - Independsant MNumbers of Maatings
Appaintment Hald Attended
Mr. Arvind R. Doshi 2gth April 2008 Non-Exscutive - indapendsnt 2 2
Mr. Privam 8. Jhaverl 2gth April 2008 Non-Executive - independent 2 2
Mr. .M. Shah 2gth April 2008 Non-Executive — independent 2 2

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, allowances and perquisites, performance
allowance eic. to the Chalrman & Managing Director and Company Secretary on recommendation of
the Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee as approved by the Board of Directors and shareholders of
the Company subject to approval of the Central Government. Each Non-Executive Director is paid per
mesting attended a sitling fee of T 5,000/ for Board Mesting and ¥ 3,000/ for Committee Mesting.
Details of remuneration of the Directors during FY 2014-15:

Nams of the Direcior Salaries, Allowances, Sitting | Commission Totat
Parjuisiies, performance faes Payable

allowance, contribuion

1o P.Fsic.
Mr. Aslt D, Javer * 44 48 950 - 24,00,000 B8 48 850
Mr. Arvind B, Doshi - 70,000 - 70,000
Mr. Privam 8. Jhaveri - 62,000 - 62,000
br. D.M. Shah - 82,000 - 82,000
Mr. Abhishel A, Javeri - 30,000 s 30,000
Mr. Pradeep N. Dezai - 15,000 - 15,000
Smt. Seema A. Javeri - 30,000 - 30,000

Tolal 4448960 | 265,000 2400000 | 71.17,860
* Whole time diractor is not eligible for sitiing fees.

Presently the company does not have a scheme of grant of Stock option. The Company has not
advanced anyloans to any of the Direclors. Alsorefer“Note 29" annexad to the Financial Statements.
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10. Generai Body Meeting:

11.

12

(A) Details of location and time of holding oflast three AGMs :

AGM for Venue Data Time Ma. of
the FY Speacial
anded Resalu-
tlons
passed
2011-12 SASMIRA AUDITORIUM, 13.08.2012 3.40 2"
The Synthetic & Art Silk Milis' Rssearch Association p.m.
F9 Floor, SASMIRA Marg, Woili, Mumbai ~ 400030
2012-13 | SASMIRA AUDITORIUM, 31.10.2013 3.00 Nil
The Synthetic & Art Sill Mils’ Aassarch Association, DL,
3/ Figor, SASMIRA Marg, Worli, Mumbsi - 400080
2013-14 | SHETH HIRACHAND GUMANJI TRUST HALL 12.09.2014 3.00 1%
Hira Baug, 1 Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank) o.m.
Mumbai - 400004
* Re-appointmant of Shri A.D. Javeri ag Chairman & Managing Director and Re-appointment of Shri N.R. Jani
as Director & Company Secretary

“incraass in Borrowing powers of the Board of Dirsctors

{B) Exira Ordinary General Mestings :

During the last three Financial Years 3 Bxira Ordinary General Meetings were held by the Company
for the purpose of passing Special Resolution (1) on 27th December, 2012 for modification of the
Articles of Association of the Company for increase in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company
and to approve to the Board of Direclors the issue, offer and aliotment of Non-Convertible
Cumulative Redeemabile Preference Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/ {Rupees Ten}each at par
not exceeding Rs. 1,75,00,000/- {(Rupees One Crore Seventy-five lacs); (2) on 28th October, 2013
for approving re-appointment of Shri Nitin R. Jani as Whole Time Director & Company Sacretary
and payment of remuneration; and (3) on 28th December, 2014 for modification of the Articles of
Association & Mamorandum of Association of the Company for increase in the Authorised Share
Capital of the Company from Rs. 11.00 Cr to 21.00 Cr,, {0 approve {0 the Board of Directors the
issus, offer and allotment of 7,850,000 Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Sharas of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each at par not excesding Rs. 78,500,000/-
{Rupees Seven Crore Eighty-five lacs), to approve the Property Purchase Transaction with the
Holding Company and Transactions with Related Parties w/s 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

{C} During the vear, the members have approved/ratified the following Two Special Resclutions by
Postal Ballot effective 14" Novernber, 2014:-
{a) Creation of charge on/morigage oftha assets ofthe Company and
(b) Sale of wholly owned Foreign Subsidiary Company.

SUBSIDIARIES :

The Company does not have any material non-listed Indian subsidiary whose turnover or net worth (i.e.
paid-up capital and free reserves) exceeds 20% of the consolidated turnover or net worth respectively,
ofthe listed holding company and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year.

DISCLOSURES:

{a} Materially Significant related party transactions : The particulars of transactions between the
Company and its related parties as per the Accounting Standard -18 are set out at Note 31 in Notes
fo Accounts in the Annual Report. These transactions are not likely to have any confiict with
Company's interest.

(b} Management Disclosures : The Senior Management Personal have been making disciosures to
the Board relating to all material, financial and commercial fransactions, where they have personal
intsrest that may have a potential conflict with the intersst of the Company at largs. Based on the
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disclosures received, none of the Senior Management Personnel has entered info any such
fransactions during the year.

{c} Strictures and Penalties :
Thers were no penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any
statutory authority on any matter relating to the capital markets during the last thres years.

{d} RiskManagemeniFramework:
The Board of Directors has adopted the Risk Assessment Procedure. The procedurs provides an
approach by the top Management to identify polential events that may affect the Company, to
manage the risk within ifs risk appetite and to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
achievement of objectives of the Company. The Senior Management priorities the risk and finalise
the action plan for mitigation ofthe key risks.

{s} Whistle BlowarPolicy:
The company has a vigil mechanism and whistle blower policy under which it takes cognizance of
complaints made and suggestions given by the employees and others. Even anonymous
complaints are looked info and whenever necessary, suilable corrective staps are faksn. No
employes of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee the policy has been put
up onthe co's wehsite (www.shcl.com)

13. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION :
The quarterly, half vearly and annual results are published in English in Free Press Joumal / Financial
Express and in Marathi in Navshakti / Mumbai Lakshadeep and are displayed on Company's website
{(www.sncl.com).

14, GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION :
The current financial year of the Company is 31" March, 2015

AGM : Dale, ime and venue 42™ Annual General Maeting on Tussday, the 117 August, 2015 at 3.00
P.M. at SHETH HIRACHAND GUMANJI TRUST HALL, HIRA BAUG, 1*
Floor, Kashurbg Chowk (C.P. Tank}, Mumbal - 400004,

Date of Book Closure Saturday, the 1° August, 2015 o Tugeday, the 11" August, 2015 {both

connection with days inclusive} in Annual General Meeting.

Dividend payment dale NIL for financial year 2014 -15.

Financial Celender (Tentative)

Results for guaner ending

June 30, 2015

September 30, 2015 2 week of August 2015

Dacember 31, 2015 2™ yieai of November 2015

RMarch 31, 2018 2™ waei of February 2018

Annual General Meeting 4" waek of May 2018

Listing of Company's shares August, 2018
The Company’s shases are listed on Bombay Siock Bxchange Lid.
(BSE}

Scrip Code 506842

1SIN Number INESBBCDITHE
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15.

HIGHALOW OF MARKET PRICE OF THE COMPANY'S SHARES TRADED ON THE BOMBAY
STOCK EXCHANGE (BSE) UPTO 31" MARCH, 2015

donth High Low Ciose No. of Shares Total Turmaover
Traded

April 2014 8.65 8.00 §.40 8,173 67,264
May 8.14 7.70 8.09 31,813 2,868,701
Juna 11.74 8.05 9.65 29,253 2,988,298
July 17.48 9.19 16.95 $7,058 12,380,348
August 20.15 13.60 15.00 52,351 8,592,430
Saeptembsr 19.25 15,00 18.55 81,201 10,34 374
Oclober 18.00 14.95 17.85 12,487 208,803
November 20.05 13.70 16.60 46,378 744,083
Dacember 16.85 13,45 14,80 37,788 5,623,308
January 2015 15.00 12.50 i2.82 37,884 5,208,862
Fabruary 14.26 12.00 12.31 23,083 3,03,451
March 14.82 1140 13.15 47,728 8,23,805

{Sourcs : BSE websita)

16. INVESTOR SERVICES :

i7.

18.

18.

The Company has appointed M/s. Link intime India Pvi. Lid {LIIPL) (Formerly known as M/s. Intime
Spectrum Regisiry Limited, whose address is given below, as iis Registrar and Transfer Agents. The
Registrar handles all matiers relating io the shares of the Company including transfer, transmission of
shares, Dematerialisation of share certlificates, subdivision /consolidation of share ceriificates and
investor grievances,

LIPL having registered office at C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup, Mumbai -
400078 are Registrars and Share Transfer Agents for Physical Shares. LHPL is also the Depository
interface of the Company with both NSDL & CDSL. Their Telephone No. 2566 3838 E-mail address:
mit. helpdesk@linkintime.co.in, FaxNo. 25846960,

SHARE TRANSFERSYSTEM:

All the transfers recsived are processed by Registrar and Transfer Agenis. Share transfers are
registered and returned within maximum of 21 days from the date of lodgment if documents are
completa in all respects. In case the shares are transferred through Demat mode, the procedure is
adopnied as stated in Deposilorias Act, 1996,

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES:

The Company's shares are tradable compuisorily in electronic form. The Company has established
through its Regisirar and Share Transfer Agents, connectivity with National Securities Depository Ltd.
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services {India) Lid. (CDSL). As on 31" March, 2014, 96.71% of the
aquity shares have been dematerialised.

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31" March, 2015:

Mo, of Shares Perceniage |
Promoters £5251352 76.92
Other Diractors and their Relatives 55488 0.80
RMutual Funds gnd UT] 560 0.07
Banks, Financial Instltutions & Insurance Companles 621 0.01
Bodies Coporale 247788 2.88
indian Public 2334755 2537
NRlg/Foraign Nationals 36488 0.40
Tatal 8200830 100.00
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Pursuant to Regulation 3(1){(e)}i) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares & Takeovers) Regulations, 1997 and subsequent amendments thereto, Promoter Group and
Persons acting in concert consists of Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Co. Private Limited
and Mr. Asit D. Javeri & his family.

20. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31*MARCH, 2015
No. of Shares Folio Amount
Number % to total Rs. % to total
1 - 5000 3748 83.8291 4613760 5.0145
5001 - 10000 348 7.7388 2607320 2.8338
10001 - 20000 191 4.2720 2788750 3.0310
20001 - 30000 56 1.2525 1396420 1.5177
30001 - 40000 18 0.4026 643960 0.699¢
40001 - 50000 30 0.6710 1397560 1.5189
50001 - 100000 3 0.7605 2577400 2.8013
100001 and above 48 1.0736 75983130 82,5829
Total 4471 100.0000 92008300 100.0000
21. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND :
The Company is required to transfer dividends which have remained unpaid / unclaimed for a period of
7 years to the Investor Education and Protection Fund {IEPF) established by the Government.
Members are advised that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to IEPF, no claim shall lie in
respect thereof. The Company has already transferred the unclaimed dividend for the year ended 31
March, 2007 to the IEPF. Information in respect of such unclaimed dividend when due for transfer to the
said Fund is given below :-
Financial year Datle of declaration Last date for claiming Due date for transfer
ended of Dividend unpaid Dividend to IEP Fund
31.03.2008 25.09.2008 13.09.2015 12.10.2015
Members who have not encashed their dividend warrant(s) for the financial year ended 31" March,
2008, or any subsequent financial year(s), are requested to lodge their claims with the Company.
22. PLANTLOCATION

Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited, 47, MIDC Industrial Area, Roha, Dist. Raigad, Maharashtra - 402
116. Tel:Dhatav-02194-263801-2-3, Fax:(91)02194-263522

23. ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

Regd. Office : Hira Baug, 15! Floor, Kasturba
Chowk (C.P. Tank), Mumbai - 400 004.

Tel : 022-23822524

Fax : (91)22-23887235

E-mail : sadhananitro@sncl.com

Website : www.shcl.com

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltid (RTA)

(Formerly known as Intime Spectrum Registry Ltd)
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup, Mumbai-400 078.
Telephone No. 022-2596 3838

Fax No. 022-25946969.

E-mail : mt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
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26.

E o
CEOQ/CFO CERTIFICATION :

The Company is duly placing a certificate to the Board from the Chairman & Managing Director in
accordance with the provisions of Clause 48 {ix) of the Listing Agreament, The aforesaid cerlificate duly
signed by the Chairman & Managing Director in respect of the financial period ended 31" March, 2015
has been placed before the Board in the meeting held on 16” April, 2015.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT FORRECONCILIATION OF CAPITAL:

As stipulsted by SEB! a quslified Praclicing Company Secretary carries out Secrefarial Audit to
reconcile the fotal admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited {CDEL) and the lotal issued and listed capital. This audit is carried
out periodically and thereon is submitted 1o the Listed Stock Exchanges. The audit confirms that the
total Listad and Paid-up Capital is in agreement with the aggregats of the iotal number of shares in
dematerialisad form (held with NSDL and CDSL) and total number of sharss in physical form.

CODE OF CONDUCT AND CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE THEREQF:

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior
Managementofthe Company.

| hersby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the Members of the Board and the Senior

Management Personnel, affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for the Financial
Year 2014~15.

Place : Mumbai A. D. Javerl
Date : 16" April, 2015. Chalrman & Managing Director
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AUDITORS® CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE m

Tothe Members, Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Sadhana Nitro Chem
Limited, for the year ended on 31st March 2015, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agresment of the
said Company with Stock Exchange. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the
rasponsibility of the Managsment. Our examination has been limited 1o a review of the procedures and
implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the
Corporate Govemnance as stipulated in the said Clause. ltis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion
on the financial statements of the Company. In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the representations made by the Directors and
the Management, we ceriify that the Company has complied with the condliions of Comporate
Governance as stipulated in Clauss 49 of the above-mentioned Listing Agresment. We state that such
compliance is nelther an assurance as io future viability of the Company nor of the efficlency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For V. Sankar Aiyar & Co.

Chartersd Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 108208wW

Arvind Mohan

. . Partner
Place: Mumbai .

Dated: 16" April, 2015 Membership No. 124082

CEOQ/CFO CERTIFICATE UNDER CLAUSE 48 D{ OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

The Board of Directors,
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited

A. lhave reviswsd the financial statements and the cash flow statemant of Sadhana Nitro Cham Limited
for the year ended 31 March, 2015 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

{iy these statements do not contain any materially unitrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

{ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and arg in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no iransactions entered into by the company
dhuring the yearwhich are fragdulent, ilegal orviolative of the company's code of conduct,

C. Wa accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal confrols for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the sffectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to
financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Commitiee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such intemal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have
taken or propose to take to rectifying these deficiencies.

0. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Commillee ;

i. significant changesin intemal control over finandal reporting during the vear;

ii. significant changss in accounting policies made during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

ii. instances of significant fraud of which wa have become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company's internal
control system over financial reporting.

Place: Mumbai Asit D. Javeri
Date : 18" Aprll, 2015 Chairman & Managing Director

48




AUDITOR'S REPORT m
- o =

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SADHANANITROCHEM LIMITED

Reporton the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited (“the

Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the

Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information..

Managament's Responsibility forthe Standalons Financial Statemants

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5} of the Companies

Act, 2013 {“the Acl”) with respect io the preparation of these standalone financial statemenis thatgive atrue

and fair view of the financial position, financiai performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounis) Rules, 20114, This responsibility

also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

selection and application of appropriate accounting poficies; making judgmeants and estimaies that are

reasonable and prudent; and design, implemeniation and mainienance of adequate internal financial

conirols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a frue and fair view

and are fres from material misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial siatements based on our audit. We

have aken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which

are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules mads there

under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Sectlion 143{10) of the

Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assassmant of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In

making those risk assassments, the auditor considers intemal financial control relevant to the Company's

praparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's

Directors, as well as evaluating the overall prasentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence wa have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give

& true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of

affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that

date.

Emphasls of Matters

We draw aftention fo Note 31 in the financial statements regarding going concern. Qur opinion is not

qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on OtherLegal and Regulatory Reqguiremants

1} Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 ("the Order™), as amended, issued by the
Central Government of india in terms of sub-section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we give inthe Annexure
a statement on the matiers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order

2} Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
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(@)
(b)
(c}
(d)

(e)

(f)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belisfwere necessary for the purposes of our audit.
in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.
The Balance Sheest, the Staternent of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,
On the basis of the writlen representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2015
taken on racord by the Board of Directors, none of the direclors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2015 from being appoinisd as a directorin terms of Section 184 (2) of the Act.
With respactio the other malters {0 be includsd in the Auditor's Report in accordancs with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Audiiors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and fo the best of our
information and according to the explanations given fo us:
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;
ii. The Company did not have any long-term coniracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
For V. Sankar Alyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
{Firm's Regisiration No. 108208W)

, Arvind Mohan

Flace: Mumbal Partner
. L 5

Date : 16" April 2015 {Membership No. 124082)

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred o in paragraph (8} under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements™ of
our report of even date to the members of Sadhana Nitro Chem Lid for the pariod ended 31° March, 2015)
Annexure referred in independent Auditors Report of even date

1. &
b.
2. =&
b.
.

The company has maintained records showing particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixaed assets on the basis of available information.

Ag sxplained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the
vear in a phased pericdical manner of over wo years, which in our gpinion is reasonable, having
regard to the size of the company and nature of its assels. No material discrepancies wene
noticed on such physical verification.

As explained {o us, invenlories have been physically verified by the management at regular
intarvals during the year.

in our opinion and according o the information and explanation given to us, the procedures of
physical verification of inventories followed by the managsment are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verification.

The company has maintained proper records of inventoriss. As explained to us, there were no
matsrial discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared fo the book
records.

3. Thecompany has not granted any loans, secured or unsscured during the period to parties covared in
register maintainad under section 188 ofthe Act.

4.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the
explanation that purchase of certain items of inventory and fixed assets are for the Company's
specialized requirements and similarly, certain goods sold are for the specialized requirements of the
buyers and suitable altemale source are not available to obiain comparable guotations there is
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generally adequate intemal control system commensurate with the size of the company and the

natures of its business for the purchase of inventory & fixed assats and for the sale of goods & services.

in our opinion ands according to the information and explanations given to us, we have not cbserved
any major weakness during the course of Audit.

The company has not accepted any deposits during the year.

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section

148 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of one of the products, manufactured by the company. We

have broadly reviewed the accounts and records of the company and are of the opinion that prima-

facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however,
made & detalled examination ofthe same.

inrespect of stetutory dues:

a.  There have generally bean delays by the company in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employses’ state insurance,
income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth tax, Customs duty, Excise duty, cess, Service tax and other
statuiory dues with the appropriate authorities. There are undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the aforesaid dues as at 31% March, 2015 for a period of more than six
months from the date of becoming payabie, details are as under:

Name of statute hature of dues Amount {Rs.) | Period to which & relates

Incoms Tax Act, 1861 Tax Deducted at Source 20,31,583 | Aprl to September 2014

Provident Fund Act, 1952 | P.F. Contribution 8,42.405 | Apnl o Saptember 2014

Service Tax Reverse Machanism 3,897,178 | April fo Seplember 2014

Total 32,711,174

a® m& N e

b. According to the records of the company, there are no disputed statutory dues on account of
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Dutly, and cess remaining unpaid as
on 31" March, 2015.

c.  Amount required to be fransferred to investor education and protection fund in accordance with
the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 1958 has been ransferred to such fund within time.

The company has accumulated losses is more than fifty percent of its net worth. The company has not

incurred any cash loss during the year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

Based on our audit procedures and according (o the information and explanation given to us, there

have been no delays in repayment of dues to banks and financial institutions during the year.

The company has not given any guaranites for foans taken by others from Bank or Financial

institutions.

The company has not obtained any term loans during the vear.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given io us, no material fraud onorby

the company has been noticed orreported during the course of our audit.

For V. Sankar Aivar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 108208W)
Arvind Mohan

Place: Mumbai Pariner
Dats : 168" April 2015 {Membership No. 124082}
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31° MARCH, 2015

)

31-03-2015 S1-03-2014
Parliculars Note 12 Months 9 Months
g L4

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharghoider's Funds
Share Capital 2 188,008,300 109,508,300
Ressrves and Surplus 3 {67,231,032) {106,828 875
Nen-Current Liabliitles
Long-term borrowings 4 1,212,478 2,248,847
Dieferrei Tax Lisbiitss (Meb) 5 - 16,577 988
Long term provisions [ 17,583,244 14,585,057
Currant Linbilitias
Short-tamn borrowings 7 260,502,258 276,011,863
Trade payables ] 207,848,750 138,771,987
Gther currant liabiliies g 25,827,987 133,837 444
Shori-term provisions 1 3,381,805 3,461,311

TOTAL S57,033,578 585,882,831
ABSETS
Non-cuivent assets
Fixed assals E))
Tanglbls asssis 312,823,874 255,388,882
Capltal work-in-prograss 56,833,828 86,993,828
Non-current invesiments 12 §79.968% 1,872,218
Defarred tax assets (el
Long term loans and advances i3 13,326,330 30,009,814
Currant asssis
Inventories 14 82,730,046 106,656,856
Trade receisabies i5 76,028,256 40,372,778
Cash and Bank balances i8 3,977,218 2,526,882
Shori-term loans and advancas ir £9,.008,638 82,05%,372
{Rher cuttent assgts 18 FP4 818 308,280

TOTAL 657,033,576 585,882,831
Significant Accounting Policles 1
Ciher notes foming part of financial statement 27 to 32
Az par our Raport of aven data For and on Bahalf of the Bosrd of Directora
For V. SANKAR AIYAR & CO. & B. JAVER! A R, DOSHI P. 8. JHAVERI
Chartered Accountanis Chairman & Diractor Divractor
Firm Ragn.No. 108208W kManaging Director
ARVIND MOHAN M. R. JANI 0. . BHAM P. W, DESAI
Pasmer Company Secretary  Director Director
Membership No. 124082
Placa : Mumbai 8. P. BHAH SEEMA A, JAVERS A A JAVERE
Dated : 16th April, 2015 Ghiaf Financs Officar Diractor Diiracior
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 2015' UJ’

31-03-2013 31-03-2014
Particulars Note 12 Months 2 Months
(4 (4

INCOME
Revenuse from operations 18 480,503,452 328,827,649
Qther Income 20 3,575,600 9,971,860
Total Revenus 484,079,052 338,595,608
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 21 323,280,710 185,164,788
Purchase of Stock in irade - 17,442 808
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-
progress and Stock-in-Trade 2 18,170,111 8,464,333
Employss benefit expense 23 54,416,841 388,131,707
Finangcial costs 24 48,285 G624 61,727,307
Depreciation and amortization axpense 20,882,917 20,718,630
Other expensas 25 123,106,303 91,664,843
Total Expensas 582,932,808 428,314,514
Profit before tax Exceptional iterns and taxes {58,853,754) (91,714,908)
Excepiional Hams
Profit on saie of Building - 108,732,128
Balance writien back 130,518,563
Profit Bafore Tax 31,882,809 15,017,218
Taxes of sarlier yoars (6,149,862
Deferred Tax 18,377,588 (20,834,594)
Profit/{Loss} for the period 41,891,845 {5,617,376)
Basic /Diluted Eaming per equity share of face value 28 455 {G.61)
of F10~ Each {Fully paid up)
Significant Accounting Policies i
Other Notes Forming part of financial statement 27 To 33

Az par our Rapord of aven dats Far and on Bahaif of the Board of Dirsctors

For V. SANKAR ATYAR & CG. A. D, JAVERI A R. BOSHI P. 8. JHAVERI

Chartered Accouniants Chairman & Divector Direcior

Firm FHegn.No. 108508W Managing Diractor

ARVIND MOMAN M. B, JARI D. WM. SHAM P. M. DESA]

Parmer Company Secretary  Director Director

Mambership No. 124082

Placs : Mumbai 8, P. BHAH SEEMA A. JAVERI A, A, JAVERI

Datad @ 18th Aprl, 2016 Ghiaf Financs Officar Director Dirsclor
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

)

31-03-2015 21-03-2014
Particulars 12 Months S Months
g L4
A. CABH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET PROFIT/ (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 21,582,808 15,017,219
Add : a. Depreciation 20,682,817 20,718,630
b. interast 48 285,824 81,727,307
¢. Loss on Sale of Investments 458,819
Less: a. Proflt on Sale of Fixed Assets - 108,732,123
b. Provigion Written back - 2,815,569
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 9% 087,182 {11.884.537)
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL
a. Trade & other Receivables {39,238,273) 77,558,535
b. Inventories 14,863,659 19,788,529
¢. Loans & Advances 8,769,880 6,882,286
d. Trade Payables 67,294,248 4,621,585
&, current liability {97 846,255) -
i. Provision 2208 482 -
{43,247 583} 108,851,935
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 55,818,570 96,967,309
Direct Taxes Pald - {1.854,567)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTVITIESH{A) 55,819,570 85,112,832
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -
a. Purchass of Fixad Assels {850,272} {1,548.171)
{Net of Adjustment for Capital work-in-progress)
b. Acquisition / Sale of Investments (Net} 288,731 -
¢. Sale of Fixed Assels - 108,050,000
CASH FLOW FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES- (B) {813,541} 107,501 829
€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :-
&. Secured Borrowings -Net of Repayment 76,482,887 {154,661,206)
b. Unsecured Borrowings - Net of Repayment {83,884,547} 789,289
¢. Interest Paid {46,268,924) {53,088,068)
CASH FLOW FROM 7 (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES- (&) {53,757,804) {208,937 ,985)
NET CHANGE IN CASH / CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+L} 1,448,228 {4,323,324)
ADE: CABH/CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING 2528 883 8852317
CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END 3,877,219 2,528 063

Notes :
1} Nongashiinancial and investing activilies have been excluded.

2} The cash fiow statement has been prepared under the “indirect method®as sef out in the Accounting

Siandard 3" Cash Flow statement® Issued under Companies

3} Previous years figures havs been regropusd and re-amranged wherever nacsssary

Ag par our Boport of gven dats

For V. SANKAR AIVAR & CO. A. D. JAVERI
Chariered Accountants Chalrman &

Firm Regn.No, 108208%W Managing Dirsctor
ARVIND BMOHAN M. R. JANI

Pastner Company Secretary
Mambarship No. 124082

Place : Mumbai 8. P.BHAH

Dated . 16th Apil, 2015 Chief Finance Officer

Far ang on Behalf of the Bogrd of Dirsctars

A R DOSHI
Direcior

D, M, 8HAH
Direcior

SEEMA A. JAVERI
Disacior

P. 8, JHAVER]
Direclor

P. N, DESAI
Director

A A JAVERI
Diractor
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT m

NOTE1
SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES :

a)

b}

c)

d}

g}

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared in accordanhce with generally accepted accounting principles in

india. The company has prepared these financlal statemeants to comply in all material respects with the

accounting standard notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013. The financlal statements
have been prepared on accrual basis and under historical cost convention. The accounting policies
adopted inthe preparation of financial statement are consistent with those of previous year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally acceptaed accounting principles

requires estimates and assumptions io be made that affect the reported amounts of assels and

liabilities on the date of the financial ststements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the
period in which the results are known/ materialized.

Revenue Recognition

Salas of Products are recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of products are

passed on to customers. Sales are siated at realizable values and are recorded net of excise duty,

sales tax and refums.

Dividend Income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

interest income is recognized on the time proportion method.

FixedAssels

{iy Fixed asseis are siated at their original cost including interest, borrowing cost and other
expenses direclly related to qualifving assets during construction period.

(il Costoffixed assets not ready for their intended use before such date is disclosed under Capital
Work in Progress.

{iiy All costs relating to up gradations/ enhancements are generally charged off as revenue
expenditure unisss they bring significant additional benefits of lasting nature.

{iv} CENVAT Crediis on capifal goods are recognized in the books when the company becomes
gligible to claim the same and are reduced from the cost of respeciive asset. Depreciation on
these assats are calculated on the net amount,

Depreciation

{iy Assetsindividually costing¥ 5,000/ or less are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

{iiy Depreciation on Leasehold land is overthe primary period of lease.

(i) Plant and Equipment acquired before 1 April 2008, building including non-factory building,
fumniture, fixture and vehicle are depreciated under WDV method at rates prescribed in
Scheduls i of Companies Act, 2013.

{ivi Plantand Equipment acquired after 1" April 2006 and computer are depreciated in accordance
with Schedule | of Companies Act, 2013.

{v} Depreciation on Effluent Treatment Plant has been provided @ 100%.
Borrowing Cost
The borrowing cost atiributed to the acquisition or constructions of qualifying assets are capitalized as
a part of cost of such assets. Aqualified asset is one that necassarily takes substantial period oftime to
getraady for its intended use. Ali other borrowing cost are charged to Statement of Profitand Loss.
impairment
Fixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and
circumstances indicate any impaimment, recoverable amount of fixed assels is delermined. An
impairment loss is recognized, whenever the camrying amount of assets either belonging to Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of assels net sslling price or ifs valug in use. In assessing value in use, the sstimated future
cash flows from the use of the assels are discounted o their present value at appropriate rate. An
impairment loss is reversed if thers has been changs in the recoverable amount and such loss either
no longer exists or has decreased. Impairment loss/reversal thereofis adjusted to the carrying value of
the respective assets, which in case of CGU, are aliocatad to its assets on a pro-raia basis.
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k)

m)

n)

L o =
investiments

Long ternm invesiments are stated at cost nat of provisions. Investments in shares of foreign subsidiary
is expressed in indian currency at the rate of exchange prevailing at the time when the original
investmentwas made. When market value becomes less than cost, provision is considered only when
the diminution is considered as being permanent by the managsment.
Valuation of inveniories
Inventories of Raw Materials, Siores and Spare parts, Packing Material, Fuel, Worlk-in-progress, Stock
in Trade and Finished Goods are staled "at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower', Stock of
Scrap and Spent Acid is valued at net reslizable value. Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of
conversion and other costs incumed in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Stores and Spares are valused on Weighted Average Cost Basis, All other inventories are valued at
Cost on ‘First-In-First-Out’ Basis. Dus allowance is astimatad and made for defective and obsolete
items, wherever necessary, based on the past experience of the Company.
Foreign Currency Transaction
Foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying the rates on the date of transaction. Exchange
differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period.
All foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. The resullant exchangse differences are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year. All non-monetary assets and liabilities are stated at the rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange difference arising on reporting of long term foreign
currency monstary items relating to acquisition of depraciable capilal assets at rate different from
those at which they were initially recorded in the previous financial statement are being depreciated
over the balances life of asssts. Exchange difference arising on reporting of all other long term foreign
currsncy monetary items having a term of twelve month or more st the datle of origination is amortised
over the balance period of such monetary item.

Refirement Benefits

{i}  Short term employee benefits are recognized as expenses at the undiscounted amount in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the related service is rendered.

{iiy Post employiment and other long term employes benefit are racognized as an exXpense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the employee has rendered services The
expenses is recognized at the present value of amount payable determined using aciuarial
valuation techniques. Actuarial gains and losses in respect of employment and other long term
benefit are chargedto the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Research and Development cost:

{i Revenuesxpanses on Research and Development are writfen off (o the Statement of Profit and
Loss,

{iy Capital expenditure on Research and Development is shown as addilion to fixed assets.
Taxation
Current fax is defermined as the amount of {ax payable in respect of taxable income for the financial
year.
Deforred tax is recognized subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred assets on
timing differences; being the difference between taxable incomes and accounting income that
originaie in one period and are capabile of reversal in ohe or more subsequent periods. Inthe event of
unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward loses, deferred tax assels are recognized only to the
extent that there is virtual certainty that sufficient taxable income will be avaiiable to realize such
assels. In other situations, deferred iax asseis are recognized only to the extent that there is
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available fo realize these assets.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a presant obligation as aresult of past eventanditis

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seitle the obligation, in respect of which a

refiable estimate can be made based on technical evaluation and past experience. Provisions are not

discountad {0 its present value and are delermined basad on management estimate required to seltle
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tha obligation at the balance sheet date. Thase are reviewed at each balance shest date and adjusted
to reflect the current management estimates.

o} Insurance Claims
Claims recsivable are accounted at the time of lodgment depending on virtual certainty of receipt.

p} Eamings PerShare (EPS)
BasicEPS
Tha earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's basic EPS comprise the net profitf{loss) after
tax. The number of shares used in computing basic EPS is the weighled average number of shares
outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS
The net profitf(loss) after tax and the weighled average number of shares outstanding during the year
ars adjusted for ali the effects of dilutive polential equity shares for calculating the diluted EPS.

NOTE 2 31-03-2016  31-03-2014
12 Montha g Months
T 4
SHAREHOLDERS FUND
8HARE CAPITAL:
Authorisad Caplial:
92680000 (PY 8250000} - Equity Shares of ¥10/- each S2E0D000 92500000
11750000 (PY 1750000) 9% Gumulative Non Convertibls Prefarence 117500000 17500000
Sharas of T 10/ each
TOTAL 210000000 110000000
ieaued Subscribed and Pald-up Capiial:
8200830 (PY 8200830} Equily Shares of T 10/- each fully paid (PY 8200830} 82008300 92008300
2800000 (PY 1750000} 9% Cumulative Nan Canveartible
Praferance Sharas of T 10/~ Bach Fully paid up) 55000000 17500000
TOTAL 188008300 108508300
Sharss heid by Holding Company 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd. | Mo of Shares | % of Holding | No of Shares | % of Holding |
Equily Shares 5960611 84.78 5860811 54.78
9% Cumulative Non Convertible Preference Shares SBA0000 100.00 1750000 100.00
Mone of the Share Holders other than Holding Company holds more than 5% as on the reporting date and
previous pericd.
Reconciliation of Shares outstanding as at the beginning and ai the end of the reporting period
Paricuiare Equity snareg 1 preierence onares |
Gty Amount Gyl Amount]
Opaning as on 01-04-2014 9200830 82008300 1750000 17500000
Add : Issued During the period - - 7850000 78500000
Cloging as on 31-03-2016 2200830 22008300 8600000 86000000

Right, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of shares.

The Company has only one class of equily shares having at par value of T 10/- per Share. Each holder of
equity shares is entilted to one voie per share. The company daclares and pays dividend in indian Rupees.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Director is subject to the approval of the share holders in the ensuing
Annual general meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitied
to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will
be in proportion to number of shares held by share holder.

The Company has only one class of Preference Shares having at par value of T 10/- per share. The
Preference Shares are Non-Convertible in nature bearing fixed dividend rate of 9%. The Non-Convertible,
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Cumulative, Redesmable Preference Shares shall be redeemed at the oplion of the Compay any time after 3
{three) years but not later than 10 (Ten ) vears from the date of issue & as decided by the Board of Direclors in
accordance with the terms of tha issue and in accordancs with the provisions of the Companias Act, 2013, or

any re-enactment theraof..

31-03-2015 31-03-2014
NOTE 3 12 Month; 8 Mcmh;
Reserves & Surpius :
Capltal Reserve 93,881 83,881
Securities Promium 5,498,740 5,498,740
Caplial Redumplion Reserve 500,000 500,000
Gensral Ressrve 133,328,206 133,329,308
Surplus Deficl In statement of profit & loss
Opening Balance (227,108,251} {221.488.875)
Lass Opening impact of depreciation as new Co Act 2013 {2,183,101} -
Profit fLoss for the Period 41,891,945 (5,817,375)
Closing Balancs {185,214,308) {227,108,251)
Farelgn Cumency Monatary Rem transiation difference Account 18,243,953} {19,243.953)
TOTAL 67,231,033) {108,928,878)
NOTE4
NON-CURRBENT LIABILITIES:
Leng Term Borrowings:
1) Secursd Term Lean From Bank:
a) Vehicle Loan {Secured Hypothication of vehicle) {Refer Nols 4{1)} 558,528 1,182,574
2} Unsecured :
i} Defarrad salas tax Loan (Refer nots 4{2)) 853,845 1,086,073
TOTAL 1,212,473 2,248,647
Note 4 (1)

The Loan of T 35.00 Laks from ICIC] Bank having interest of 10.91% is repayabls in 60 monthly instaliment

of ¥0.751akhs from January 2012 to Oct- 2016
Note 4(2)

The Total loan of T 20.90 lakhs from SICOM Lid. Consisting of 3loansT12.10lacs ,T5.81 lacs and T2.98
lacs. This loan is interest free under Sales Tax Deferral Scheme. This loan is repayable in 15 instaliments

fromAprii 2012 and last instaliments falling due on April 2018,

NOTE S

Deferred tax Lighiiities (Net)

Depraciation and Amoriisation 22,758,988 21,957 415

Unobsorbed Depreciation {16,280,860) -

Expanditure allowed under {IT Act Payment basis) (6,478,138} {5,579,417)
TOTAL - 16,377,008

Deferred tax assst an unabsarbed depreciation has been recognized fo the axient of delarred tax liabilitiss,

NOTE 6

Long Term Provisions:

Provision for emplovee Benefils -(Leave/Graluily) (Refer Nole 23) 17,683,244 14,595,057
TOTAL 17,683,244 14,555,057
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NOTET

Short-term borrowings:
Secured:
Working Caphial Loan From bank

[The faciiities ars securad by way of first parl
passu charge on Current Assets, second par
passu charge on Company's antire fixad assets
and further secured by personal guaranies of
Chaimman & Managing Direclor.}

Unsecured:

invber Corporabe Deposit
Others

NOTE 8

Trade pavabiles:
Due to micro small and medium enterprises
Others

{a) the principal amount and the interest due therson (lo be
shown separatsly) remaining unpaid o Any supplieras atthe end
ofaccounting year,;

{b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED
Act, 2008 along with the amounts of the payment mads to the
supplierbeyound the appainisd day during each acoouniing year
{c) the amount of interest due and payabie for the period (where
the principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED At
2006-Not paid

{d) the amount of interast accrued and remaining unpaid at the
and of accounting vear; and

{e) the amount of further inlerest due and payable even in the
succaeding year, until such datewhen the interest dues as above
are ackially pald to the small enterprises for the purpose of
disallowance the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
asmall anterprises for the purpose of disaliowance a8 a
deductible expendure undarsection 23,

ROTE 8

Orher curtant Habilities:

Current maturiies of long term
debts-Sscured & Unsecurad Loan
{Refer Note No 4)

FRedssmad Preference Shares & Excess Rights lssus (Unclaimed)
Unclaimed Bonus & Salary
Unclaimed Dividand

Statustory Dues

Employes Duss

Advance From Customer

Book Overdraft

Othars

MOTE 10
Shori-term provigions:
Provision for employse Benafits -{Laave/Graiuity) (Rafer Nots 23}

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

31-03-2018 31-03-2014
12 Months 2 Months
¥ L4
141,457,084 84,360,371
128,045,174 211,651,582
288,502,258 276,011,983
207,648,720 136,771,987
207,648,730 136,771,967
1,830,514 89,310,613
21,800 21,000
45,647 45,547
78,553 173,958
17,718,408 12,483,732
8,148,784 6,535,397
283 B73 18,115,859
1,376,279 3,352,304
4,633,045 3,789,034
35,827,957 133,837 444
3,381,608 346131
2,381,608 3,481,311
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NOTE 11
FIXED ASBETS
QBOSE BLOCK (A7 COST) DEPRECIATION HET BLOCK
Partcuisrs Aot Addiions  Deductions!  As st Frr For Deductionsf  Asst Aset At
01042014 during e yesr Adjustronts S105.2016  01.042014 Seyeer Aguatments 31032016 31052015 31032014
¥ T z T T T T T T
Tangible Assete :
L : Lagpwhild 400 . 78400 257 0 3375 805 4
Freanald Land - TAZO0000 T4.200,000 - - - TSI
Freehold Lend 2,404,573 2,484,573 - - . ZABASTI 2484573
Fiont & Exigeent TEZLENGS14  1L7EERAZS THE556,962 559,910,542 16,008,590 SEDB0E3TR  TURBNITH 215.595,172
Bulidings 100,610,038 - 100819038 70136002 280025 215401 5218351 25400708 30.4830%7
Mon Factery Bulkdng 4,300,000 4,300,000 - 4712 472 429528 .
Furmituras & Flehures 6618510 84,081 7O02581  BATIAZ  aBTH 8543748 453845 441480
Computer & Other Equipment 11,675,680 59,762 Hamsde  visHsE 2417 11554090 65508 544250
Vahicles 19,745,600 1,050,000 18,895800 17000446 TOI4E 95070 TEE0113% 184862 2605354
AND TOTAL BALH, 117 BOAULIT]  TO0G0000  1,000,500,008 Uo0,145,00% S0BEL0NT S,iE5831 G 063313 J1500.04  Bki0se02
“PREVIOUS PLaion BI04 1546,160 16,996,676 o450 717 600550003 20,716,690 15.006,600 660,148,005 Joh.0BB.002  270.677.000

Piant & Equipment include lab equipment having WDV 7 10,13,319- (P.Y. 714,15,035/) R&D Eguipment having WDV 7 7,385,150 (P.Y 7 12,05,994/)
Addifion in Piant & Mechinery includas foreign exchenge fluctuation on long tem foreign cumency Rability < Nil (P.Y T NIL}

NOTE 12

NON-CURRENT INVESTRENT

Trade investment

Unguoted :

Invastmant in aquity instrumants of Subsldiaries

750 {P.Y. 7560} Equily Shares of Anuchem B.V.B.A. - Belgium
of 25 Euro each

NIL {(P.Y. 25000} Equity Shares of Anuchsm Pte.Lid.-Singapore
of 1 Singapore Dollar Each

Cther investments

Guoted :

500 (P.Y.500} Anco Communication Lid

3800 {P.Y. 3800} Enaral Finance Lid

18000 (P.Y. 18000) Indian Exiractions Lid

5000 (P.Y. 5000} indo-Biolech Lid

2000 (P.Y.2000} First Object Technoliges Lid
1300 {P.Y. 1300) Mexworth Orchards Lid

SGG00 (P.Y. 5000} Olas Teshnocham Products Lid

L ass Aggregate provision for dminufion in value of invasiment

31-03-2015 31-03-2014

12 Months @ Months

4 4

771,680 771,680

- 682,250

Total A 771,550 1,483,800
71,788 71,788

78,000 78,000

508,184 508,194

181,250 181,250

81,400 81,400

13,600 13,000

131,485 131,495

1,075,127 1,075,127

868,707 986,707

Total B 108,420 108,420
Total (A+B) B79,969 1,672,219

[Aggregate Amount of guotsd investment T 10,75,127/- (PY €.10,75,127/-)and market value of ¥71,788 (PY 71,11,215}
[Aggregate Amount of unquoted investment ¥7,71,550/- (PY ¥ 14,63.800/)
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NOTE 13 21-03-2015 31-03-2014
12 Months 9 Months

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES: 4 g

{Unsecured Considered Good)

Capital advance 1,628,289 853,251

Other Loan & advances

Security Deposiis §,313,737 8,644,737

Advance incoms tax {Net of Provision} £.384.304 22,705,826
TOTAL 13,328,330 30,008,814

NOTE 14

Inventory: (Valued at Lower of Cost or Net Reglizable Valus)

Raw Material (Include stock in transit Rs.§,85,600/- (PY NIL) 14,018,430 13,848,106

Worlk in Progress 32264 448 41,368,864

Finished goods 9,293,330 15,389,025

Storass & Spares 31,081,870 30,712,821

COihers (Fusl, Packing materal) 6,051,868 5,228,040
TOTAL 82,730,048 108,858,856

NOTE 15

Trade Recelvabie:

(Unsecured, Considerad Good)

Overdue more than Six Monihs = 472,654

Others 78,029 258 88,800,124
TOTAL 76,028,256 40,372,778

MOTE 16

Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and cash eguivalent:

Balancs with banks 287,988 547,520
Cash in hand 505,220 531,547
Giher Bank Balances

F.D. with Bank-Margin money with

original Maturity less than 12

Ranthis 3,204,025 1,449,925
TOTAL B,8¥F, 218 2,528 902

NOTE 17

Short Term Loans & Advances:
{Ungscured, Congiderad Good)

Loan to Staff 180,200 387,254
Advancs 1o Vendors 5,001,580 8,107,698
Balance Wikth Statusity /Bevenue Authorities 57,043,178 50920772
Other * 6,673,668 2,637,548

TOTAL £9,838.838 82,053,372
(*includes Emloyse Loan, Prapaid
Expenses}
NOTE 18

Oiher Current Assele
Racelvabls From Holding Company - -
Intarest Accad 374,618 308,280

TOTAL 374,818 306,280
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NOTE 18

REVENUE FROM OPERATION:
Sales of product
Leas: Excise duly

Other operative revenus:
Export Benellts
Oiher (Waste Matarial)

Details of Sales

Sales Of organic intermediates
Sales Of Chemical intermediates
Eaming in Forsign Curency (FOB)

NOTE 20

OTHER INCOME :

interast income

Profitf{Loss) On Invesment
Profit{Loss) on Sals of Assets
Balances Writien back
Discount racsived

Provision Wiritten Back

Other Miscollanaous income

NOTE 21

EXPENSES:

Caost of Material Congumed

Inveniory af thia beginning of the Period
Add: purchase

Inventory at the end of the Psriod

Yalue of Rew Materal Gonsumad
imporied
Indigsnous

Ratw Material Consumed
Bsnzens

Mitric acid

Cast ison powdar

Cleum 65%

Caustic Potash Flakes
Other

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

5.058% 18,312,488
84.95% 308978224

TOTAL

F1-03-2015 31-03-2014
12 Monthe S Months
4 g
501,505,212 328,805,213
23,919,084 8,662,249
477,885,128 320,222 964
451,828 4,085,036
2,056,703 2318649
i 1,328 e 01104,685
S00.5809 452 mon BT 648
182,818,711 21,541,723
347,225,130 301,000,892
283,661,681 209,868,055
2,708,215 5,544,072
{455,518} -
{8,270} -
559,730 1,785,119
- 11,200
= 2,615,589
734,444 6,000
3,578,800 9,971,960
13,848,106 22177562
823,695,434 186,635,332
13,352,830 13,248,108
823,285,710 185,164,788
11.48% 22,408,671
BB.52% 172,756,117
130,872,473 54,342,208
37,111,380 12,032,182
25,814,782 13,632,356
9,111,266 6,924,637
28,782,700 16,141,552
§1,787,088 88,081,933
323,280,710 195,164,788
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NOTE 22

Change In lnventory of Finlshed goods \Work In progress shd

Stock in Trade
Qpsning Finished Goods
Lass: Closing tinished good

Opening work in progress
Less: Closing work in progress

CGiher Opening Stock
Lass: Other Closing Stock

Scrap Opening Stock
Less: Sorap Closing Stock

NOTE 23

Emplioyes Beneflt Expansss:
Salaries Wages and Bonus
Managerial Remungration
Contribution to PF and other funds
Gratully Expenses

Siaff walfares

Employee Benefit
Defined Contribulion Plan

TOTAL

TOTAL

Coniribution 1o defined contribution plan, recognized as expsnses

for the year are as under
Employer's Contribution to provident fund
Employer's Contribution to pension schame

Defined Benefit Plan

The Employes's gratuily fund scheme managed by a
trust Is 2 defined benafit plan. The prasent valus of
the obligation is determinad based on actuarial
valuation using the projecied unit credit mathod,
which racognizes sach pericd of servics as giving
rige o additional unit of employee benefit entitlement
and measures sach unit separately to build up the
final obligation. The obligation for leave sncashment
is recognzied in the same manner as gratuity.

31-03-2015 31-03-2014

12 Nionths 9 Months

¥ L4
15,395,025 11,435,483
$.283.530 15,385,025
§,105,895 {3,958,582)
41,368,884 48,807,759
32,264,448 41,368,884
$.104,418 7,438,895
48,000 35,000
50,000 45,000
{5,000} {10,000)
115,000 110,000
150,000 115,000
{35,000} {5,000)
18,170,111 3,464,333
41,643,266 30,083,700
4,448,950 5,264,553
2,588,047 1,771,481

3,808,876 -
1,817,802 1,001,973
54,416,841 38,131,707
1,176,712 848,661
1,162,655 832,848
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Gratulty Laave Encashment
{Funded) {Unfunded)

i} Beconclliation of opening and closing balance of defined Beneft obligation
2014-18 2013-14 201415 2013-14

Definad Benefil Obligation at beginning of the year 18573652 20485852 8425823 8808072
Cn Amalgamation - - - -
Curreni Service Cost 584552 498043 407575 318887
Interest Cost 1848322 1189588 7e2880 500228
Actugrial gainfioss 2232851 (3635740) {20713743)  (854548)
Benefit paid {37814448) (1943868} {B05E4) {74825)
Settiement cost - - - -
Dafined Banefit Obligation at year end 17175832 16573652 7601628 8495823
i} Rsconciligtion of opsning and closing balance of
fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 7013107 8289538 - -
On Amaigamation - - - -
Expectad Retum on Plan Assets giG140 540802 - -
Actuarial {gain)/oss {48081) 112761 - -
Employer Confribution - 13786 - -
Benefit Paid {3761444) (1943868} - -
Settiement cost = - - -
Fair Value of plan assets al year and 3g127i2 7013107 - -

Actual return on plan assels - - - -

1} Reconciliation of falr valus of assats and obligation

Falr vaiye of plan assels 3g12712 FO13307 - -
Prasent value of obligation 17175833 16573852 TEO1828 8495823
Amount recognised in balance sheet 13363221 9580545 7601623 8495823

i} Expenses racognized during the vear
{under head of "payment to and Provision for employes™}

Current Service Cost 584552 468043 407575 318887
Intgrest Cost 1548322 1188568 792860 500228
Expecied retum on Plan assats (810140} {840892} - -

Actuarial {gain)/loss 2281942 3748501 {2073743)  (854549)
et Cost 3802878 4885218 {813508) {35424)

V) Actuarial assumption

Discount Rate {P.A) 9.33% 9.33% $.33% 8.33%
Expeciad rate of relum on plan assets (P.AL} 9.33% 8.33% 8.70% 9.33%
Rate of escalation in salary (P.A) 4% 4% 4% 4%

The estimated rate of egcalation in salary considered in actuarial valugtion, take into account inflalion, seniosity promation
and other relevent factor including supply and demand in the employmant market. The above information is cartified by
achuary.

Ths expected rate on plan assels Is determined considering several applicable factor, mainly the composition of plan assets
held assessed risk, historical result of return on plan assets and the company's policy for plan assets management.
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NOTE 24

Financial Cost:

Interest Expenses

Oiher borrowing cost

Met GainfLoss foreign currency transacton & transiation

NOTE 25

Qiher Expenses
Paymsant to auditors

Audii Feas

Tax Audit

Others Service
Power and Fueis
Rent
Bate & Tax
Insurance
Printing & Statiohery
Posiage Telegram & Telsphone
Travelling Expenses
Legal & Professional fees
Conveyance Expenses
Dirsctor Sifling Faes
Electricity Charges
Security Charges
Mizcelensous BExpenses
Siores & Spares Consurned
Repalrs Maintenance

#achinery
Other

Qther Manufachiing Expenses
Effluent Expensas
BaD Expenses
Freight and Forwarding Expanzes
Commission charges
Packing Matarial
Local freight & other expenses
Nat Loss on Foreign sxchange Transaction & Transistion

TOTAL

TOTAL

NOTE 28

Eaming per share of Nominal value of ¥ 10/- each compisad in
according with Accounting Standard (AS-20) for the year

a} Profit {Loss) afier tax as per P&L Account

b} Opening number of equity shares outstanding

¢} Closing number of aquity shares outstanding

d} Basic /Diluted aarning per share [{a)(c)] T104 per share

L o =
032015 31-03-2014
12 Months 2 Months
¥
24304118 17124955
22581476 38,224427
{629,670} §,377,925
45,266,924 61,727,307
310,000 245,000
85,000 48,750
36,502 585,005
E7,887,881 51,150,853
430,200 565,800
8,108,634 830,273
1,210,380 1,082,205
97 7.p62 532,797
1,128,740 865,731
3,591,442 1,987,972
4,648,414 5,876,141
2,035,853 1,343,120
289,000 135,000
B3, 742 633,486
1,820,878 -
8,222 671 2,844 429
2,134,825 4,538,052
655,669 280,752
2,042,088 2,107,104
4,218,907 4,867,146
1,588,308 1,342,024
168,168 558,414
5.484,187 8,201,261
5,856,810 62,423
1, F30, 778 1,507,578
1,890,233 688,018
1,602,068 1,384,613
123,108,368 91,664,943
41,891,948 {6.617,376)
9,200,830 8,200,830
4,200,830 8,200,830
4.55% {0.81)
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31-08-20158  31-03-2014
NOTE 27 12 Months 2 Months
T

Estimated Linbllifes not provide for : - -
{a} Egtimated amount of contract remaining to be sxecuted {nst of payment)

{b} In respect of Guarantes givan by the company’s Barker for
central excise and other purposs - -

{) In respact of Coporate Guarantes given by the company to the

bank for loans borrowed by Indian Subsidiary - -
{d Dividend on 9 % Cumulative Non-Convertible Prafarence

Shares. 1,671,781 1,181,250

NOTE 28

Ssgmentsl Reporiing :

in accordance with AS-17 ‘Segment Reporling' segment
information has been given in the consolidated financial
statements and therefore no separate disclosure on ssgment
information is given in these financial statements.

NOTE 28
Related Party Digclosure :
Hold! Key
Nature of Transaction e olding o heidiaries  Associates Mansgament Total
ompany
Personnel
2) Salos of Goods 18,232,722 - - 18,252.722
{80,551,878) {3 {} (BD,551,878)
b) Rscelving Servicas - 483,375 - 483,275
{3 {162,543} - (182,543)
¢} Managerial Remunaration - - 4,448 950 4,448 950
{'} ('} (5!264!553} (5!2641553)
d} Director Siting Fees - - &0,000 &0,000
{-} ) {25,000) {25,000)
&) Loan Repaymant - - - -
0] (- (1,200,000} (1,200,000
fi Puchass of Assels 78,500,008 - “ - 78,500,000
] Q] o] ) ¢
gl Guarantea Commission - - 2,400,000 2,400,000
) } ) ¢
Guistanding Belance as onr 31st Barch, 2018 1,874,278 453,675 2,400,000 4,737,951
{17.088,982) {} {-} (17,088,082)
i} List of related parties
iy Holding Company - M/s. Manekchand Panachand Trading Investment Co. Pvt. Lid.
i) Subsidiaries - Mfs. Anuchem B.V.B.A., Belgium
i) Assoclates - Mis. Lifesiyle Networks Lid.

Mis, Phihlo Colours & Chemicals (1) Lid.
M/s. Amnisera Comporation
i1} Key Mangement Personal

i) Shri. A.D Javeri - Chairman & Managing Director
ii} Shri N.R.Jani - Company Secretary
ifl} 8hri Sanjeev P. Bhah N Chief Finance Officer

iii} Dieclousre in respect of material related party transaction during the year
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{1} Sale of Good to Anucherm BVBA, Belgium ¥ 1,62,32,722 (PY ¥ 7,37,88,803) {2) Anuchem PTE Lid Singapore T Nil
¥ 87,55,275) {3) Receiving Services from Amnissra Corp.{Associate} T 4,683,375 (PY Rs.1,62,543) {4) Purchase of Asset from
Manekchand Panachand Trading Inv.Co Pvi Lid {Holding Company)¥ 7,85,00,000 (PY Rs. Nil} (5) Suarantee Commission paid
to Asit D Javeri (KRMP)T 24,00,000 (PY Nii) {6) Loan Repayment o Asit D Javerd (]MP)T Nil (PY Rs.12,00,000}

NOTE 30

During ths ysars, the company reassasssd ussful §fe of itz fixed asssls as per Scheduls Il of Companles Act, 2013.
Accordingly,an amount of ¥ 21,893,101/~ has been recognized in the opening balance of retained saming whers the remaining
useful life of the assets is NIL.

NOTE 31

The order book posilion has improved during the financial year ae compared t0 the past including long term supply agreements.
During the psriod, the company has dispoged most of its non core assets and the procesds have peen ulilized to selle some of the
high cost debt and also lowards working capital requirernents. This in cumulative perspsctive will improve the overall performance
of the company in addition to sbsorbing accumulated losses. Hence althaugh there are accumulated losses as on 3158t March,
20185, considering the overall sirategy, going concem would not be affecied and accordingly financial statements have been
prepared.

NOTE 32

The Current financial sisiemenis have been prepared for 12 months whereas the previous pericd was for 9 monihs and
accordingly previous year figures are not comparabls. Provious year's figures have besn reclassified in accordance with the
requirements applicable during tha current period.

31-03-2015 31-03-2014
NOTE 33 12 Months 9 Months
T T
{A) VALUE OF IMPORT CALGULATED CiF BASIS
Raw Maierial £,138,870 32,474,010
Total 8,138,870 32,474,010
Value of store Consumed
Impont 0% 0%
indeganous 100% 8,134,825 100% 4,538,052
{B} EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY:
{To the extent pald}
Traveling Expenses 2,843 422 119,740
Comrission 432,040 -
Interast and other charges on FC loan from banks - 2,356,533
Total 2,874,482 2,486,273
&s per our Raport of even dats For and on Bahalf of the Board of Directors
For V. BANKAR AIYAR & CO. A D. JAVERI A R. DOSHI P. 6. JHAVERI
Chertered Accounianis Chairman & Director Director
Finm Regn.No. 109208\ Managing Director
ARVINDG MOHAN N. R. JANI 0. #. SHAH P. N. DESAl
Partner Compary Secretary  Director Diractor
Memberghip No. 124082
Place : Mumbal &, P, BHAH SEEMA A JAVERI A, A JAVERL

Dated : 16th April, 2015 Chief Finance Officer Dirsctor Dirscior
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| DIRECTOR'S REPORT|

The Directors of Anuchem BVBA are pieased o submit herewith the annual report and
Audtted statement of accounts for the yvear ended 31st Decomber 2014,

Review of business:

The principal activities of he company continued to be marketing of Chamicals. The
Turnovar during the year was EUR476.977,24 (2013 - EUR 2.349.328,02). The Loss for
the yedsrwas at EUR 35,383,683 {2013 Loss forthe year-EUR 12.374,858)

The dirsctors opined thal, baring unforessen circumstances the performance of
company is expected in imporve in the current financial year.

DIVIDERD °

The directors have decided that there will be no divident forthe year2014.

AUDITORS :

The auditors, Mr. Lue Verrvken of Agiver BVBA, sccounfantakantoor have expreased their

willlngnass to continus as Audiior and the Dirsctors will plase a resolufion bsfore the
general maesting for their re-appointment.

On bahalf of boarg
A. D. Javeri

Antwerpen,
3rd April 2015 Director

ANUCHEM B.vVBA.

ANUCHEM p.vB.A.

| AUDITOR'S REPORT |

AGIVER BYBA ACCOUNTANTSKANTOOR
BISSCHOPPENHOFLAAN 588

2100 DEURNE

REG. NO 47552 N 53

Tothe sharsholders of Annuchem BYBA:

| have audited the balance sheet of Anuchem BVBA as at 313t December 2014 and | have
audited the balance sheet of Anuchem BYBA as at 315t December 2014 and the related
Profit and loss account which have been prapared on the basis of accounting policies
stipudated undar Chaptar il ofthe royval decres of 8th Gclobar 1578,

The said accourting policies have not bean altered in relation to the previous financiel year.
Tha profit end loss aceount is not being majorly influenced by vields and costs that havs o
ba ascribed to the previous financial year.

i have conducted my audit In accordance with the auditing standards issued by 1AB
Accountants organisation. An audit incdudes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant 1o the amounis and disclosures in the financial statements. 1 also includes an
assessment of te significant astimates and judgsments made by the Dirsctors in the
preparation of the financial statemsnis and of whether the accounting policiss ane
approprialte to the companies circumstancss, consistently applied and adequatsly
discipsed.

1 planned and perfoirmed my audit 8o as to oblain all ths information and explanations which
| considered necessary in order to provide ms with sufficient evidencs io give reascnable
assurance that the financial statements are free from materisl missiaternent, whether
caused by fraud of other Fragularty of srror. In farming my opinion | also considsred the
overall adsquacy of the prazaniation of information in the financial stalement.

in my opinion the financial statement give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at 31st December, 2014 and ofthe profit or Loss for the year then ended and have
heen properly prepared in accordance with the requirement ofthe Belgium Company law.

For Agiver Bvba
Lue Vemeyken
Rag. NO47552N 53

Antwerpen,
3rd AprEl 2015
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ANUCHEM BVEBA.

ANUCHEM B.vBA.

ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS OF ANUCHEM BVBA

ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS OF ANUCHEM BVBA

BALANCE SHEET AFTER DISTRIBUTION OF PROFIT PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
3i-Dec Ji-Dee 3-Dee 3De
2014 2813 2014 2013
{currancy : Eurg} {curmency : Euro} {eurrency : Eura} {eurrency : Euro)
LIABILITIES HNCOME ;
1) Sharshalder's Funds Tumover 475.977,24 2.349.328,02
a) Shars Capltal - Issued Capiial 18.750,00 18.750,00 Interest received 683,93 0,00
b} Reserves: increase{decrsass) In dosing stock 21089,90 (168780,68)
i) Legal reserve 1.875,00 1.875,00 Incoma{loss} on exchange fluctuation -{1056.78) 184777
i} Profit and loss Acoount 8.933,18 42.619,10 496.581,38 2.187.015,03
2) Current Linbilities 10.808,16 44.384,10 ?PEMSES :
:) é":dF Payable %;?g'gg zggég’% cﬁﬁﬁﬁn forwading chargea 4?;321:22 2122222,2:
] rvices e Rl Travelling and administralive sxpenses §.827.02 6.328,89
¢} Vai Payabie 0,00 1.8086,08
d) Dividend Payable 1.875.00 1.875.00 Local Taxes 439,80 858,00
' i Financial expenses 1.285,81 122075
— — Depredciation/amount written off 2.00 0.00
98.880,45 323.561,95 frade debiors 531.885,01 2.200.388,99
TOTAL OF LIABILITIES
128.438,61 391.708,05 PROFIT(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION : {35383,63) (12374,98)
ABSETS
1) Non-current assets Less : Provision for {axation for the year 6,50 0,00
a) Fixed Assels 000 0.00
Fixed Asssts {gross)  1.830,97 1.830,97
Less : depreciation  [1830,87) {1830,97} PROFIT{LOSS) AFTER TAX (35383,63) (12374,98)
2) Current Assels 0,00 0,00
Add : Carrlad over profit of last year 3185,
g) Inventories B ye 44.316,79 56.691,75
b) Receivables 55.585.73 34 505,74 for
i) Trade receivables 63.338,84 345.565,04 Less 1) Provision for dividend 6,80 0,00
ii} Other receivables 2.152 87 0,00
66.081,51 345 585,04 profit to be carrisd over 8.833,16 44.315,79
3) Liguid resourcas 8.751,37 1182437
TOTAL OF ASSETS 128.438,81 391.708,06
AGIVER BVBA A. D. Javer! AGIVER BVBA A. D. Javer
Accountaniskantoor Direcior Accountaniskantoor Director

Reg nr 47565.2M.83
Antwarpan, 3° April 2015

Bag nr 4755.2M.53
Antwerpsn, 3¥ Apri 2015
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ANUCHEM BvBA. ANUCHEM BVBA
NOTE ON ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT OF ANUCHEM BYBAFOR 2014 I
1) ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 5} TRAVELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2014 2013

The Pricipal accounting policies adopled by the company are as follows:

Fees 8.386.21 5.911,80

&) BASISOFACCOUNTING: Register and publication costs 127,43 126,63
The accounts ara prepared under the historical cost conveniion and in Other business expenses 313,38 280,76
accordance with applicable acoounting standard, 6.827,02 532899

B} STOCKS:

Stocks are valued at ower of cost or netrelisable vaius. £} CLEARING AND FORWARDING CHARGES

¢} CURRENDCIES:

This accounts have baen prepaned in Eurs (€) Freight 65.181,96 82.738,38

d} FOREGNCURRENCIES: Rental stockhouse 0,00 0,00
Revenus transactions in foraign curmancias are iransiated in Euro atthe Fee verron 12.000.00 12.000,00
exchange rabe prevaiiing on the date of ransaction. §7.181,3¢ 85.238,38
Atthe end ol the financial year the Assets and liabilitiss sxpressed inforeign
currencies arg transiated into Euro atthe rats of exchangenulingattheend of 73 LOCAL TAXES
financial year.

@} DEPRECIATION Local taxas 439,50 858,00
Depreciation on Fixed assats Is at the rate of 20% per annum on straight line 438,50 &68,00
basis.

F} TAXATION: 8) FiINANCIAL EXPENSES
Tax payabie is provided on taxable profit at the cument tax rate.

interesis 65,30 308,81
Charges 1.220.31 913,84
2} SHARE CAPITAL Withhalding Tax
Authorised, aliotted and fully paid-up §.285.61 1.220,78
750 shares of € 25,00 Euro each. Income 0.00 2.00
1.285,81 1.220,75
3} RECIEVABLE {(dus within on® year)
23 LIQUID RESQURCES
Mors than 8 Months Others Fortis (Usd) 0.00 2,504,214
204 2013 2014 2013 Fortis (Eurc) 0,00 0,00
a) Trads raceivabla 0,00 0,00 63.338,84 345.565,84 State Bank of India (Usd) 4.388,58 8.851.05
b} Other recelvable 0,00 0,00 8,00 0,00 State Bank of india (Euro) 228922 .. 4854
0,00 §,00 65.338,84 34556584 6.857,80 19.540,30
4) Supplisrs {due within one year} Cash Balance e B38T
More than 8 Months Othars 6.761.37 11.634,37
2014 2013 2014 2013
ﬁ) Forfurchasa 0,00 0,00 9448850  280.020.40 AGIVER BVBA AD. JAVER|
) For services D.00 (.00 2.516.85 3406277 Aceountantskanioor Dirgctor
8,00 8,80 87.605,45 323.083,17 Reg nr 4755.2N.53

Antwarpen, 3" Apri 2015
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CONSOQOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT
OF
SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED
AND
ITS SUBSIDIARIES

AUDITOR'S REPORT

TOTHE MEMBERS OF BADHANANITROCHERM LIBITED
Raport on the Consolidabted Financial Statemonds

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statamants of S8adhana Nitre
Chem Limited (Holding Company) and its subsidiaries {Holding company and subsidiaries
collectively called as Group), which comprise the Consclidated Balance Shest as at 31st
Barch, 2015, the Consclidaiad Statement of Proftt and Loss, the Consolidaied Cash Fiow
Statemant for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information {hereinafler referred to as Consolidated Financial
Statemenis).

Management's Responsibiliy for the Consolidated Financial Btatements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the preparation of thess
consolidated financial statemants in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
{herainafter referred to as “the Act™)thal give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidaled financial performancs and consolidated cash flows of the
Group In accordance with the accounting principles ganerally accepted in India, Including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, The respective Board of Directors of the companies
Included In the Group are responsibls for malntenancs of adequatls accounting records In
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assels of the Group and for
prevenling and detecling frauds and other imegularities; the selection and application of
approprigte accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, Implemeniation and maintenancs of adequats intemal financial
conirols, that wara operating sffectively for ansuring tha accuracy and compleieness of the
assounting records, relevant io the preparation and presentation of the financial statemants

O ]
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that give a trus and falr visw and are free from matarial misstatement, whether dus to fraud
or ermor, which have bean used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
staiements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditors Responsibillly

O reaponsibility is o axpress an opinion on these consolidated finandal statements
hased on our audit. YWhile condusting the audi, we have taken into account the provisions
of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and mattars which ars required 1o be
included in the audit report underthe provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10} of the Act Those Slandards require thal we comply wilh ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit io obisin reascnable assurancs sbout
whethar the consolideied financial statements are fres frorn material misstatarment.

An audit involves performing procedures (o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
thadisclosuras in the consolidated financial statements. Tha procedurss selectss dapend
on the suditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risis of material misstatement
of the consolideated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk
assessments, the auditor conslders intemal financlal coniral relevant to the Holding
Company's preparalion of the consolidatad financial statamsnts that give a frua and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company has an
adequate internal financial controls system over financlal reporting In placs and ths
operating effectiveness of such confrois. An audif aisc inciudes evaiuafing the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
astimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Diractors, as well as svaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidatsd financial siatements. Wa beliave that the audit
avidence cbiained by us and the audit evidence obiained by the other auditors interms of
their reports referred to in Other Matiers paragraph bolow, is sufficient and appropriste (o
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statemants.

Opinion

In our opinion and io the best of our information and acgording io the sxplanations givenis
us, the aforessid consolidated financial siatements give the information required by the Act
in the manner 30 ssyuired and give a tue and fair view in conformity with the sccounting
principlas genarally accapied In India, of the consolidatad stats of affalrs of the Group as at
31st March, 2015, and their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Emphagis of Matlers

We draw atteniion io Note 32 in the financial slatements regarding going concemn. Our
opinion |8 not quallfied In respact of thile matier.
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OtherMatiers

We did not audit the financial statements / financial informafion of Two Foreign
Subsidianies of which One Foreign Subsidiary ceases to be a subsidiary with effect from
31" August 2014. Tha continuing subsidiary's financial statements / financial information
refleci total assets of Re.52.89 lacs as at 31st March, 20185, total revenues of Rs.231 lacs
and net cash fiows amounting to Rs.{12.26) lacs for the vear ended on that date, as
considered In the consolidated financial statements. The entity which ceassd o be a
subsidiary during the year reflact total revenus of Rs. 6.67 lacs up fo the dale of being a
subsidiary. These financisl statements { financial information are unaudited and have
baen furnished o us by the Managemsnt and our opinion on the cansolidated financial
statemanis, in 5o far as i relates to the amounts and disciosures inciudsd in respect of
these subsidianas, and our report in tenns of sub-sections {3} and (11) of Ssction 143 of
the Actin sofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on such unaudited
financial statements / financial information.

Dy epinien on the consolidated financial statements, and cur report on Other Lega! and
Regulatory Reqguiremenis below, is ol modified in respect of the above matierns with
reapact fo our rellance on fw work done and the reports of ths othsr auditers and the
financial statements / financial infermation cartifiad by the Managament.

Report on Dther Legal and Regulatery Requiremsnts

1) As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Ordar, 2015 {the Ordar’), as
amended, issued by the Ceniral Govemment of india in ierms of sub-saction 11 of
section 143 of the Act, based on the comments in the auditors’ report of the Holding
company and subsidiary companies incorporated In Indla, we give In the Annexurs a
statament on tha matters specifisd in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Ordar as applicabls.

2) Asrequired by Section 143 (3] of the Act, we report that:

{a) Wa have sought and oblained all the informalion and explanations which o
tha best of our knowladgs and belisl wem nacassary for the purposss of our
audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by lew relaling io
preparation of tha aforesald consolidated financial statemants have bean kept
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and
unaudited financial statements provided by the management.

(¢} The Consolidated Balence Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loas, and the Consolidaisd Cash Flow Sialsmsnt daalt with by this Raportars
in agresment with the books of account for the preparation of the Consclidated
Financial Statements.

{d) Ingouropinion, the aforesald consolidated financlal siatemants comply with the
Accounting Siandards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
ofthe Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

{e) On ths basis of the writlen representations recaived from the directons of the
Holding Company as on 31st March, 2015 takan on record by the Beard of
Diractors of the Holding company, none of the directors is disgualified as on
31st March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 1684 (2)
oftheAct.

)

{fi With respect o the other matlers fo be included in the Auditer's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Cormpanies (Audit and Auditors) Rulas, 2014, in
our opinion and io the best of our information and according o the explanations
giventous:

. Thare are ne pending Stigations which would impact financial poskion of
consolidated financial pesition oftha Group;

ii. The Company did not have any iong-term coniracts inciuding derivative
coniracts for which there wera any material foreseeabls losses;

fii. Thare has heen no delay in transfering amounts, required to be
fransferred, io the Invesior Educstion and Pmolaclion Fund by the
Company.

For V. S8ankar Alyar & Co.
Chartered Accountarts
{Firm’s Registratlon No. 109208W )

Arvind Mohan
Parther
{Membership Ko. 124082}

Place: Mumbal
Date: 16 April 2015
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT
Reformed {6 In paragraph (1) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Regquirements” of our reportofsven dats.

1.

a. The company has maintained records showing particulars induding
guantitative dolalis and situation of fined assels on the basis of available
Information.

b. As sxplained fo us, ithe fixed assets have been physically verified by ths
management during the year in a phased periodical manner of over iwe years,
which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of tha company and
natura of its assels. No matenial discrenancies were noticed on such physical
verification.

8. As explained fo us, inventories have besn physically verified by the
managemant atregular intervals during tha year.

b.  Inourcpinion and according o the information and sxplanation givan to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories foflowed by the management
are reasonable and sdegusts i relation (6 the size of the company and the
nature of s business. No material discrepancies wera noticad on such physizal
verification.

. Thecompany has maeintained proper records of invenlories. As explained to us,
there wate ho matarlal discrepancles noficed on physlcal vedfication of
invaniory as compared to the book recornds.

The company has not granted any loans, secured er unsecured during the period to
parties covered in register maintained under section 188 ofthe Act.
In our opinion and according 1o the Information and explanations given o us, having
regard to the sxplanation that purchase of corlain ftlams of ivantory and fixed assels
ara for the Company's specialized reguirements and similary, certain goods soid are
for the specialized requirements of the buyers and suitable allernats source are nol
availabie io obtain comparable quotations thera is generally adequate intemai confrol
systemn commensuraie with the size of the company and the nature of ils business for
the purchase of inventory & fixed agsets and for the sale of goods & services. In our
opinion ands according io the Information ard explanations glven o us, we have not
chearved any majorweakness during the course of Audit.
The company has not accepted any deposits during the year
The Central Goverament has prescoribed mainterance of cost records under sub
section {1) of section 148 ofthe Companias Act 2013 in respsct of one of the products,
manufactured by the company. Wa have broadiy reviewed tha accounts and records
of the company and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed accounts and
racerds have besn mads and malntalined. We have not, however, made a detallsd
asxaminationoftha same.

in respact of statulory dues:

a.  There have generally besn delays by the company in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, investor sducation and protection
fund, empioyees’ siate insurance, income-iax, Sales Tax, Wealth iax,
Customns duty, Excise duly, cess, Service tax and other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities. Thers are undisputed amounts payable inrespectof
the aforesaid dues as at 31% March, 2015 for a period of mors than six months
from the date of hecoming payable, details are as under:

)

)

Fams of sistuts Nature of duss Amount (R8.) | Benod to winch 8 rewmies
incorae 18X Act, 1861 Tax Deducted & Salrce 20,31,503 | April 1o Seplember 2014 |
Pravident Fund Act, 1852 | £.F. Conimbuton 842,405 | April to Sepiember 2014
Servica Tax Reverse Mechanism 3.97,176 | Apiilto Seplember 2014
Total 52,711,174

B. Aceording to the reconds of the company, there are no disputed statulory dues
on acoount of Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty,
and cass ramalning unpald as on 31% March, 2015,

c.  Amount required o be transferred to investor aducation and protection fund in
accordance with the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 1956 has been
transfernad lo such fund withintime.

8. The company has accumulated losses is mors than fifly percent of its nel worlh. The
company has not incurred any cash loss during the year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

8. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation
given to us, there have been no dslays in repaymant of duss to banks and financial
instituions dusing the year.

10. The company has not given any guaraniee for loans taken by others from Bark or
Financlal Instifutions.

11. The company has not oblained any term loans during the year.

12. in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given io us, no
miaterial fraud on of by the company has been noticsd or repoitad during the courss of
ouraudit.

For V. Sankar Alyar & Co.

Chartersd Acceuntants

{Flom's Reglstration Mo, 106308W 1

Arvind Mohan

Place: Mumbai Partner

Date : 16" April 2015

{Membership No. 124082 )
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3157 MARCH, 2015

)

)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOBE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2137 MARCH, 2015

$L05-2018 a1-08-2014

Pariicuiars et 12 Honths 2 Monihe

¥ T
EQUITY AND LIAGHE MES
Shurshokisr's Furds
Shers Caphs! 2 182,002,200 108,508,300
Flepanvea and Surplus 3 {88,072,084] {105,438 0B4)
Son-Surrsnt Lisbiitng
Long-ienm bormowings a 1212473 2248847
Cafored Tex Liahitfiss (MNei) § - 1377008
Long term praovisione L] 17,285,258 14,595,057
Curramt Lisbliiies
Bhort-wm bomowinge ¥ 60, 0 BO5, 531,483
Trade payabios L} AT BB TE0 148,168,374
Othar currer? iiablities 8 35,841,160 135,004,588
Shori-term provisions 1% 3,607 582 3481311

85,351,721 £19,588,774
ASSETS
Han-sunmnt szl
Flasd Asatte IH
Tanglls asssts FiZE2%E72 255,385,602
Capital worlcin-progress S8 5us 008 88,863,807
Nen-eument invesimants 12 108,420 108,420
Long term loavs and advances i 13,326,220 20,008,814
Currem Assotn
invgitiones 14 4,311,305 120,445,878
Tras receivablon is 74,080 363 90,073,482
Cagh and Bank balences 18 4,959,349 4,187,200
Shior-lerm inohs and sovanees 17 95,128,636 82053371
ihar caiFnant aosats % ITAEB 308,280

S5 T 818,688,774
Slgniflcant Accuuniing Pollkies 1
e nictes farming pant of financis slement 27 1 34

H1-55-50515 F-03-30i4

Partioulars Nots 12 Months @ Months
g ¥

HCOME
Ravanius fram opanasons 1% 551,208,358 [WJIA.TAS
Cither incoma 20 4,588,635 10,511,124
Tot! Ravenus 435,207,192 330,884,850
EXPENSES
Cost &f matsrals consumed k1) 324,870,632 195,184,788
Purchass of Stoek In Fads - 17 442,808
Changes in bverioniag of finlshad goods,
wwle-inegengrass and Siook-n-Trade -4 Ta888,018 {7 20, T4
Emploves benefit expefiag n B4 418,841 38,131,707
Finarcial costs 24 A8 80,685 51,283,808
> Hation and lzatk 23,882,077 20,718,830
Othar supanzas = 139,807,520 35,237 782
Tostal Expanines 855,371,114 425, F47 BAD
Erofit besfrs o Excaptiona! ftame and twes (104,979,022} {oz, 852,978
Exceptionai leme
Profit on sale of Buikling = 105,782,123
Balznce writea bock 130,518,583 =
Profit on dispassl of i i subeidiary 3805802 -
Profit Befors Tex 29,249,833 13,878,147
Teoees of sarfier years (&, 148, Ba2y
Doterred Tax A8 ITFF, 008 {20,634 504}
ProR{Lozs) for the pariod 29,578,789 (8,756,547}
Basic /Diutad Eaming par aquity share of face waiue of
Fis. 10¥- sach (Fuliy Paid up) 28 4.30 [Ls R )]
Significant Acootnting Peilclea 1
Other Notes Forming part of financiat stetement 27 To 34

A per oL Heport of sven daie

Fur V. SANKAR AIVAR & CO,
Chartersd Accouniaits
Firm: Pegn.Mo. 1082080

ARVIND MOHAN
Farinar
Momberghin Mo. 122082

Flace 1 N
iredted : 18t Apri, 2075

For nrvd on Balelf of e Bosnd of Directars

A D, JAVERE A B.DOSH
Chelman & Dlrsctor
Managing Diractor

K. R. Jal D. K. SHAH

Company Soorstary  Dirsctor

8. P, BHAY SEERSA B, JAVER
Chiet Flivanes Offleer Dirsotor

P, 5. JHAVER!
Direcior

P. N DESAl
Lrector

A B JAVERI
ey

B8 pot i REport of even date

For ¥. BANKAR MYAA & CO.
Chantersd Accoutants
Flim Bagn.ho. 100208W

ARUIND MOHAH
Parngr
Membarghip No. 124082

Piaes : Mumbal
Datad : 16th Apil, 2015

For and on Behalf of the Board of Dimsclons

A D JAVERT AR DOBHI
Chalmon & Dirgctor
Mansging Director

A JAN 0. M. BHAR

Company Secrstary  Dirscior

8. P, Saan BEEMA A JAVER
Thie! Finance OMosr Dirsctor

P&, JHAVERS
Dlractor

PN DESAl
Diractor

& A JAYER
Dirgctor
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2IET MARCH, 2018 |

O ]

)

RI-03-2018 31033015
Sartculars 12 Monthe # Bonthe
T ¥
A, CABH FLDW FAQOM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET PROFITY (LOS8) BEFURE TAX 22,248,832 13,878,147
Add: & Deprcition 20,589 817 20,718,820
B, Inferast 48,506,688 §1,.263,806
Lass: A Profit on Dipasal of Sale of investmants in subsigiarny 3,808,022
b. Profit on Sala of Flxed Assets - 106,732,123
. Provision Wikte back - 2,815,566
OPERATING PROFTT BEFORR WORKING CAPITAL CRANGES 85,020,224 {13,488,209)
CHANGES [N WORIKING GAPITAL
2. Trada & othr Fecsivables (1870} | 57280815
& inveniones 28,180,535 8,733,785
o, Loana & Advancos 258,359 6,882 285
4. Trads Paysbles (29,535,062) 8,580,014
(az7enss) | 7o4msse2
CASH QENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 86,765,185 88,009,373
Direc? Taxes Paid - {1,854,567)
NET CABM FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTVITIED-LR) B8.7BE, 188 64,154 808
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTIRG ACTITIES -
& Pusshage of Fixsd Assels meoiem | {seaiTh)
{MNet of Adjustmant for Capita! wark-in-progress)
b, Acqulsition / Sale of Investmaenis (Ne?) 238,731 -
©. Salo of Fied Asnata - 108,050,000
CASH FLOW FROM / {(VSED I} INVESTIRG ACTIVITIES- {8} {19,061} | 107,501,829
€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES -
& Secursd ge -Hst of Fepayment 48,875,148 | (125041,888)
bt ings - Nat of Repay (84,175,048) 788,289
. irtersst Pald 2R g {62,602,862)
CABH FLOW FROM § (USED 1) FINANCING ACTIVITIES- &) {86,045,588) | (176,845,250)

T
302015 2082012
Pariiculars 12 Menihe 9 Months
¥ z

WET GHANGE !N GASH / CASH EOUIVALENTE (A:B+53 96,148 (5,185,623
A GASHICABH EQUIVALENTE AT THE BEGINMMNG 2,157,206 9,375,823
CASH/CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END 4,282.340 4,187,200

Noten @

1) Mon cash financial and investing activilies have been exciuded.

2) The cash fiow statement has been prepared under the “indirest method®as sat

ouf ins T Accouring Standand 3 * Cash Flow slalement ®

IPravicus years figuras have been regropusd and re-gmanged wherevar

nRLooory

Az par our Repori of even dets For and on Behali of the Board of Direcions

For ¥. SANIAR VAR & OO, A D, SAVER AR DOSH B8, SHAYER!

Charterss Assountants Chalrman & Dirsctor Dirsctor

Fieen Ragn.No. 109208W Ranaging Diracior

ARVIND BOHAN MR A 0. M. SHaH PN DESA

Parmar Comparty Seongtury  Dinsstor Dirsestor

Membership No. 124082

Placa : Mumbal 8. P sHAR BEERA & JAVEM A & Javen

Datad @ 18t Aprll, 2015 Chiaf Financa Officer Dirsctor Dirsator
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND
PROFIT AND LOSS AGCOUNT

NOTE1

1.

Significant Accourting Policies and Nolss fo  thass Consolidaied Finandial
Slatements areiniended toserve as a means ofinformative discloaum anda
guide o befter understanding the consolidated position of the Companies.
Recognizing this purposs, the Company has disclosed only such policies and
notes frem the individual financial statements which fairy repressnithe needsd
disciosures. Lack of homogeneity and other similar considerations made it
desirable fo axclude soms of them, which Inthe oplnion of the managamsnt,
could be bsiter viewed when referrad from ihe individual financial statements.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements :

i} The financial siatemsnt of the subsidiary uzed in the consolidation is drawn
uplo the same reporting dale as that of the Parent Company, i.e. year ended
31 March 2015, The foreign subsidiaries follow January 1o Decenber as their
financial year. in the cazs of thess foreign subsidiariss the Company has
redrawn its financial statements for the yearended 31% March 2015,

iy The financial statements have besn prepared under the historical cost basis
and as a going concem. The account of the Parent Company has been
prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards neofified by the
Companles {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, and that of ths forelgn
subsidiary has bsen preparad in accordance with the local laws and the
applicable accounting Slandards’generally accepted accounting principles.

Principlas of congolidation -

&) The consolidated financial siatements have been prepared in aceordance with
the accounting standards (AS)-21. {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2008, as
notified by companiss.

B} The consolidated fnancial staterment relates 1o Sadhana Nitro Cham Limited
{The Company}and its wholy ownad foreign subsidiary Anuchem BVEBA,,
Beigium.

¢} The consclidated financial stalemenis havs baen prapared on the following
basis.

i} The fnancial statement of the company and its subsidiarias have been
comblnad on aline by ins basis by adding togsthat the book valuss of ke
itemns of assets, liabilides, income and expenditure after eiminating il
materal intergroup balances and intergroup ransaclions resulting in
unrsalized profifiosses.

O ]

i

i}y The foreign subsidiaries’ financial year is calendar year and the sams is
audited accordingly. However, for consolidation purpose the unaudited
financial statement of subsidianas is compilad for the pariod same as that
of tha company for reporting.

i} Minority Interest on consolidation of Indlan subsidiary has bssn
recognized in the consolidated financial statement.

v} The Incomes and Expensas transaction ofthe praflt and loss sccount and
assels and liabiliiss appsaring in the balanca sheel of the fomign
subsidiares, which are considerod as Integral forsign operating are
translated in Indian Rupses as per Acsounting Standard. The effect of
changas inforeign exchangs rates.

¥} The consolidaied financial staternent have been prepared using asfaras
possible uniform  accounfing policy and  are presenied o the adent
passiblainthesame mannerasths company’sfinancial statemant.

Significani Ascounting policies:

a) The Accounis have been prapared on historical cosi basis and as a going
concem complying in all maierial aspecis with applicable accounting principies
in India, the Accounting Stendard issuad by Institute of Charlered Accountants
of india and the relevant provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013,

b} The audited funsudited financial shstements of forsign subsidisries have bean
praparad in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting principle of its
company of incorporation or international financial reporting standards. Ths
difference in accounting policies of the company and ifs subsidiares are net
material and thers are no malerial ransactions from January 1, 2015 (o March
¥, 2015 in respact of subsidiarias having financial year endsd Decambar
31,2014,

¢} Sales:
Sales include sxchange differences and are net of sales tax and refums.

d) OthersignificantAccounting policies.
These are sst cut under "Significant Accounting Policies” ag given in the
Company's separate financial siatements.




7

L
1432015 R4E8
12 Monihe 9 sionths
T T
HOTE 2
SHAREROLDERS FUND
SHARE CAPITAL:
Authorised Caplial:

8250000 {F.Y. 8250000} - Equity Sharea of 210/-eech
11780000 {PY 1750000} 8% Cumukaive Non Corveriible
Preferance Shares of ¥ 10/~sach

Issuad, Subsoribed sl Pald-up Gapltsl:

SZEO0000 S2500000
7 TS00EEE 7SO0

TOTAL FIOGOGOG6 110000000

8200830 {PY 5200830} Equity Shanes of T 10/ each fully paid 2008300

B500000 {PY 1750000} 8% Cumulative Non Convertble Preferance Sharss

of iy~ sah Fully ped up _SEO00000 17500000
TOTAL SERCOES0R I0BS0BI00

Shnran helti by Holding Company Fi-3-a018 I SO ]

- e Trading Co. PYb. Ll (35 o1 Bivwee e 5

Fguity Sharas S00611 78}

¥ Cumuiaiiea Mon Convestible Prefgrence Shares FHOOCD) 4

Nons of the Share Holders other than Holding Company holds more than 5% as on the
reporting date and previous year.

Regongiliation of Shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting
pariod

e :

Opaning an o 01-08-2014 S2O0EA0 SEGHBI0D
Add - lssued During fhe pariod p F
Cloalng a8 on 31-03-2015 £200830) 22008300]

Right, preferances and restriciions afiached to each cigss of shares.

The Company has only ons cass of egully shares having at par valus of T 10/ por Share.
Each holder of equity shares is eniiited to one vote per share. The company declares and
pays dividend In Indlan Rupess. The dividend propossd by the Boand of Diecior Is
subject io the approval of the share holdsers in the snsuing Annual gensral meeting. inthe
avent of liguidation of the company, the holder of aquily shares will be entitied to receive
remaining assels of the company aftsr distribution of all preforential amounts. The
distribution will be In proportion to numbsr of shares held by sharg holder.

The Company has only one class of Prafarence Shares having at par value of T 10/ par
shars. The Preferahca Shares ars Non-Convertibls In naturs bearing fixed dividendrate
of §%. The Non-Convertibie, Cumulative, Redeemabie Preferance Sharas shall be
redeemed at the oplion of the Compay any time afier 3 {three) years but not iater than 10
{Tan ) years from the datle of issue & as decided by the Board of Direclors in accordance
with the tarms of tha issue and in accordancs with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, or any re-enactment thereof.

L
F1-03-2015 3903204
12 Monthe 2 Montha
T T

HOTES
RESERVES & SURPLUS
Caphipl Reserve a7 44,537
Seourlties Premlum A7 5,488,740
Caplisl Radumpiion Ressve 00,500 SR KKy
Genersl Hesarve 193,329,908 133,328,006

Surpiue /Defiok In statement of profit & loss

Opening Bojanos (245,204,747} {219,004.747)

Forsign Cumancy y item jon difference Account - {18,243,953)

Laza Opaning impact of depraciation 2a new Co At 2013 (219%,107} -

Profit Logs for the Paricd WERIN {BTE5M4N

Closing Balanca [205,425,378) 245,004,141
TOTAL m 5105.425.961:

KOTES

HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Long Term Boruwings:

7] Becured Teem Logn From Sent:

a) Vahicia Loan (Sacured Hypothization of vekinia) (Mater Noda 4(13 ESREIR 1,182,574

%) Unwecured :
§) Defered salos tax Loan {Refer note 4 {3 1,008,072

— EE0AS | 1,086073
TOTAL _ ,712073  B248847

Hoto 4 (1)

The Lean of T 35.00 Laks from ICICI Bank having interest of 10.91% s repayable in 60
monithly Instaliment of T 0.75 lakhs from January 2012 g0 Oct- 2018,

Noted (2)

The Total loan of ¥ 20.20 lakhs frors SICOM Lid. Consisting of 3 loans 12,10 lacs,
T5.81acs and T 2.98 lacs. This loan is intorast fres under Sales Tax Deferral Schame.
Thig ioan iz repayabls In 15 instaliments from Aprl 2012 and las! insialiments faliing
dius on Agpril 2018.

HOTE 8

Daterrod tax Linbiiities {Mot)

Dapreciation snd Amortisation 22759998 21957415

Unobaorbed Deoredation {16,280.850) -

Expandiiure siiwwed undsr {TT Act Payment basis) B478,158) _ L578410
TOTAL 16877 658

S cmiannm
Delarradl tax asset an unabaothed depraciation ks bean reesgnized o the axiant of defared tax labilltes

NOTE S

Lang Term Provisioes:

Provision for amployee Banafits -{Leave/@natulty} (Rafer Mote 23) 17,582,244 14,595,067
TOVAL 17585884 14,585,007
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O ]

L)
IT-02-2018 10314
12 Months 2 KMonths
HOTE7 — =
Snori-lerm borrowings:
Secur:
Working Capital Loan From bank
[Tha texiRtles ars saecured by way of it parl passu chargs on Current
Assuts, second pail passy ohergs on Company's entio fived aesels and
furinee secured by pareonal guamntes of Chaiman & Meneging
Dhractor.) T4, 457,084 83,879,800
Uinwsesired:
ey Compeareie Doposit
Otharg 125045178 259,851,523
ToTAL ZEsma
NOTE 8
Trotds payabilos:
Do o enleres wrnadl and i sntgnwises ~ -
Dt AT BT 142, 188474

TOTAL 207848730 147 168 574

{a} the principal amount and the intarest due therson (lo be shown separately) remaining
unpaid to Any supplier as at the end of accounting year;

{b} the amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act 2008 along with the
amounis of the paymsnt mads to the supplier bevound ihe appointed day durng sach
accounting vear

{c) the amount of interest due and payable for the pericd {where the principal has been paid
but interast under the MSMED Act 2006-Not paid

{d}the amount ofintsrest accrued and mmaining unpaid at the end of sccounting year; and
{a} the amount of further interest dus and payabls aven in the succesding year, until such
date when the interest dues as above are aclually paid to the small enlerprises for the
pupose of dissliowance the Intsrest duss as above are aclually pald o the small
enterprises for the purpose of disallowanes as a deduclible axpandurs under saction 23.

NOTE®

Orher current llabiltes:
Cument msturiilss of long teri delsis-Seoured & Unssoured Loan [Rafer

)

Note Ko 4} 1,580,818 B9, 310,814
Ratieamad Proferencs Shares & Excsss Rights lssus {Uinclaimed) 21,000 21,000
Unclaimad Bonus & Salary &847 45,547
Unciaimed Dividend 8558 173,859
Siatustery Duss 17 FIRS08 12483732
Employse Duss EALN ) 8,596,367
Agwance From Cusiomsr 282872 15,282,082
Book Overdraft 1,375,278 3,352,304
Othars £.595,197 3,700,034
TOTAL 25280150 131 558
NOTE 10
Short-serm provislons:

Priprision of Dividend peyebie by forslon subsidary
Pressision for smpioves Bonofits -{LosvefSrmtuityd {Rofar News 23)

NOTE N
FED ARSETS
QROSE BLOOK | DEPREGIATION RET BLOGK
ot 00w}
Paslleutars Total ap &t Taks] upls Az 8n A& oR
F1.03.2015% .08.0008 3p320is 31032014
[4 [3 [ 3
Tangihis Assate =
Land : Leasshald TEAGH 3,975 43,025 43,829
Fresheld Lant 74,200 % - 74,200,080 .
Frashold Land 2ANETS - 2,484,573 2484573
Plant & Equipment 784,558,842 580,900,572 | F0RBASETO |  ZIBE9E,172
Biulidinge 00,581,050 To 218 580 25.406,768 B8 AT
Hon Faciory Buiiding 2,300,908 AT LX) -
Furitures & Firturss 7.t 8543748 AR 845 441 Aka
© & Other 11,838,642 11,854,088 325,803 244,258
Vehlcles 18,885 500 18,201,138 1,884,552 2,885,354
GRAND TOTAL 1,003.085,900. [l i3 | 8138 A
FREVIOUS PERIOD RATETIT 550,148,065 | 255 368,800 | £70,877,050

Plant & Equipment include lab squipment having WDV ¥ 10,13,2184 (PY Y 14,158,938 R&D
Equipment having WDV £ 7,38,1500- {PY £12,05,994.)
Addition In Plant & ¥Machinery Includas forelgn axchangs Ructustion on long term forelgn curmsnoy

Nabligy T NIl {PY T NIL)

NOTE 12

NON-CURRENT INVESTHENT

Trade Mveatwan?
Ussequaoted :

investmant In squity insinemerds of Subsidiares
786 (P.Y. 750} Equity Shares of Anuchem B.V.B.A. - Belghmm

of 25 Buro exch

NIl (P.Y. 25000) Baully Sherss of Anucham Ple.Lid -Singapore

of § 8ngepoms Dollar Exnht

Cither immatmenis
Cranded =

808 (PY.500; Anco Commurication Lid
3900 (P.Y.3%00) Enaral Finance Lid
18000 {P.¥. 18000) Indien Exiractions Lid

5000 (F.Y.5000) Indo-Biotach Ltd

2000 (R.Y.2000) First Object Technoliges Lt
1300 (P.¥.1300) Meswarth Crehards Lt
60000 (P.¥. 5000) Ojeen Technectian Progducts Lit

Total &

Less Aggrepgete provision for dminution in vakss of investment

Tots B
Tetel (B}

S-0%-3055
12 Honihe
i

T 550

T 550

Fakit
78,000
508,104
181,250
1,400
13,000
i3
075,127
60,707
108,490
R,

03274
9 Months
X

771580
BE2,250

1,483,800

71,758
78000
508,184
191,250
&1,400
13,000
151,486
1,075,127
988,707
08,420
1,572.219

[Agtsreram Amount of quatsd investmentt T 10,785,127 Y ¥.10,75,127/-)ond mariat valus of T 71,788 (FY ¥1,19,218)
{Agoregaie Amount of unquoied irvestment €7,71,5565 (FYY 14,83.6004)




8.

HOTE 13
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES:

[Unsscured Consldensd Goad]
Capital athanos

Otfver Lokn & sdvences

Sacurity Dapoais

Advance Income tax (Met of Provision)

NOTE 14

Inmntons (Valued at Lower of Cost or Nat Ranllzable Valuo}
Faw Materal {inchude stock In tansh ¥ 6,685,600 (Y Hil)

‘Work in Prograss.

Finishad goode

Slores &

Dihers [Fusd, Packing matarial)

NOTE1S

Trads Recelvabla:
{Unsecured, Considared Guod)
Owordue more than Six Monthe
Othars

NOTE 18

Cagh sl Bank Ssiances

Cash snd cash squivaient:

Salance with banks

Gagh In hand

Oiher Bank Balancss

F.D. with Bank-Margin money with orginal Maturity

igge than 12 Months TOTAL

NOTE 17

Sheori Term Losns & Advances:
{Unzecurad, Considarsd Qood)
Loan o Staff
Advancs i Yendors
Balanse Witrh Staturity Rewinue Actherilies
Orbesr *
TOTAL

Finciutes Smioyss Losn, Prapaid Expanses}

L
S-D3E018  3I-032Me
128mths 8 Months

1,528,280 858,251

313,737 4,544,737
§384.504 22,70BAim

TS _RgRE

1408430 304808
WAAA4E 41,258,884
10874,780 28,187,847
31081958 30713821

ST TR
V20,445,578

- 38,623 553
73261,382 20450,838
TR BE2 0075482

574,088 2,205,728
505,228 531,547

3,204,028 1,448,825

186,200 387,253
6001890 6,107,808

57,049,178 50,820,772
887308 femrean

88,808,538 62,053,571

HOTE 18

Other Currens Asseis

Racaivabla From Holding Company
Intatast Acerusd

HOTE 18

REVENUE FROM OPERATION:
Salss of product
Lags: Exalss duty

Githar {(Waste Materal

Dsizils of Saieg

Salgg Of prganic imarmediatos
Seles Of Chemicel Intermadiates
Eaming In Forsign Cumency [FOB)

NOTE 28

OTHER INCOME :

Interest Income:

Profiifiloes) on Sale of Assets

Net gain on lorsign exchenge transection
Balannas Writhen back

Tisoourt tecaived

Provigion Written Back

ther Misceilansgus income

HOTE 31

EXPENSES:

Cost of Maberial Conaumed

inventony at the baginning of the Pariod
Add: purchass

Irventtiry At the end of the Pared

Valve of Rew Meterdel Conmumed
imported
Indigenous

e Risweiel Comeurmed
serean

Hitrio ankd

Cast iron powdar

Claum &5%

Caestic Potash Flokeg
et

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

16,312,488
8208% 208,581 048

TOTAL

SO0  31-03-2014
12 Months Morths

274,818 308,280

ATRSINOSS WA BTH060
47_5,“1& 313,876,080

A& A 4,085,036
ryir] 2,319,845
o

SRR 0 EDIRI%

132318711 21,500,728
347,225,120 301,000,902
263,861,881 208,868,055

2750188 5544788
{8,270}

118,784 536,070
528,780 1.7395,119
= 1,200
- 2815588

e aa 5909
4,188,884 10,511,124

13,948,106 22,177,562
324,2TE,28F 188935330

13.362,830 _ 13,848,108
324 873,637 185,184,788

1148% 22408671
ge.e2% 17,786,117

130,679,478 54342379
11380 12082182
5AIETEZ 13632358

9,111,288 8924537
27RO 10,141,562
%wﬂﬂf ag 091 433

$B4GT3E03  105.164.780
et et
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NOTE 22

Change in invensory of Finlzhed goods Woek in progress and
Stoolk iz Trade

Cpondng Finished Qoods

Lone: Glosing Pniahed good

Operdng work in progrags
Laza: Cloging work in prograss

Other Opsning Stock
Les5: Other Closing Stock

Berep Oponing Sieck
Lags: Sorop Cloaing Siock

NOTE 23

Empioyss Bonsil Expenses:
Salavies Wieges dnd Bomue
Manageria! Remunerstion
Contribution to PF and other furds.
Gratulty Expenses
Siaff wolfares
TOTAL
NOTE 24

Financial Coat:

interost Exponsss

Cithar bomewing cosld

Mgt Gainvloss Toralgn cumency transaction & fensiation

NOTE 25
Ortivesr Engisnsns

NOTE 2§

Eaming per shans of Nominal valkie of T 10/ azch computed In
asnonding with Asacunting Standard {A5=20) for the year

) Profit /{Loss) ofter tax as per PAL Account

b) Opsaning nesmber of aquily sheras outstanding

¢} Cloging numbar of oguity sharog outstanding

o} Besle Awted saming per shans [{ay(c)] (¥ 10/ par shara)

NOTE 27

Estimated Lisbiiities not proviss for :
{8) Esfimated amourd of soniract remaining i be estuted (nel of payment)

{&) In reapact of Quarantes given by the cofmpany’s Bankey Tor central
sxpiss and othar puipass

{0} In respet of Coporsts Guarass given by the company tn the
bank for Inana borrowed by incian Subeidiary
{d) Dividend on 8 % Cumulalive Non-Conwerlibls Prefersncs Sharoe.

032058 10304
12 Monahs & Monitha
¥ T
T AT B 14,583,178
25,897 327 28,187,847
1,222,202 14, 524, 669)
21,308,804 43907750
i 41 384
2,104,418 7,438,805
45,000 35,000
50,000 43,000
1 {10,000}
115,000 116,000
158,000 115,000
g 5,000
Wlﬂlﬁlﬁil 774,
1,843 588 20,008 700
4,443,850 5,264,553
2,898,947 1778488
3809878 -
3817802 1,000,975
£4,416,841 38,131,707
24304112 17124055
5,120,238 58,851,527
. (gEemTe) _ S2ET124
48,803888  61,253508
30,607,590 68,227,082
BRETETEN  (B755.447)
2,200,820 9,200,530
2200850 £,200820
439 .75
157,781 1,181,280

NOTE 28
CONSOLIDATED SEGMENT REPORTING
1) Informadion shou Primary segment-geographical

)

Export & Local Toial
Segment Msvenus
Extemel Tumover 400,475,848 208,858,712 &06,132,658
Export Incantive 1,024,802 - 1,004,802
Profit on Saie of Aseeie/Dispoesl of iInvestme s 2,582,803
Qthar ravenus 4 240
401,500,748 205,556,712 516,824,700
Segment Fesult 73,003 508 TA43380 B0A4T,188
Profit on Sals of Asssts/Dlsposal of Investments 2,582,583
Oiher revaniLg A B4 340
Qparating Profit a7,114,51
Interegt 47,081,870
Depmevistion 20,662,#7
Profit / {Loss} before Taxation 30,340,834
Cument Tax 6,148,882
Daferred Tax 18,377,868
Profit after Tawstion W e
HOTE 28
Feiated Party Disciozure :
i Koy
Nasturs of Tranasstion —"“":'"‘, fos Assosision MEneg Totsl
Porsonnal
&) Sales of Goods - 18,232,722 - - 16,282,722
¢} (80,551,878} ) () {Bos51678)
b} Recelving Servives - = 483375 - 483,975
£ ¢} (182543 ) {182,543
) Manzgedal Remuneretion = a - A 248 080 4 448 850
£ 9} (3 (5:284583) {(6,284,653)
o} Dirsotor S&ting Foes - - = B0,000 60,500
o] 2] -} {25,000) {25,000}
2) inan Repayment - - - - -
5] [ G {1,2000000  {1,200,000)
i Puchase ol Assats TSRO0 - - - 78,500,805
3] 7]
o) Busranisa Commission - - -
3 3
Canalanding Balancs as on 31st March, 2018 - 1574378 483878
&) (17.088,862) 3]
i} List of reisted parfes
§} Helding Company - Mia. M, ! Trading | Co. Pyl Lid
D Scadars L et s
B} Associstes Mis. Phiilc Coloura & Chamicals {7 Lid.
ks, Amnizara Comoration
1 Key Mangement Parsonal
i) Shi. AD Javar - Chzirman & Managing Dimecior
i) 8hil NAL.Janil - Company Secratary
Chied Finance Officar

i} Shl Senjeev P. Shah N
1t} Disclousre In respect of matenal related party transaction during the yaer
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O ]

B

{1} Sale of Good to Anuchem BVBA, Belgium ¥ 1,82,32,722 (PY ¥ 7.37,26,803} (&)
Anucham PTE Lid Singaspore T NIl T 6§7,55,275) {3} Racalving Seivices from Amnisens
Comp {Associata) T 4,83,375 (FY T 1,82,543) {4) Purchasa of Asssl from Manskchand
Panachand Trading inv.Co Pvi .Lid (Holding Company} ¥ 7,85,00,000 {PY T Nil) (5)
Guarantee Commission paid to Asit D Javerd (KMP) ¥ 24,00,000 (PY NI} {8) Loan
Repaymentto Asit D Javer (KMP)YT NIl (PY T 12,00,000)

NOTE 30

Addiional information 28 reguired undar schadul

[F: i of the
emarpriess consolldated a5 subsidiary,

Act2013, of

Mat Assots g Toml
i rrinasa Toial Share In Proftt & Loss
Tighiliti
% of e
-, a a »
Name of entity o o Pt
origes
]
Earslan Subsidaries
Antchem BABY (Beigiun) 1.2048 1,440,880 (7.88 {8,138,3881
Anuchern PTE (Singapora) E ¥ {167 669,681y
]
Hinodiy interest in
|Subsidiaries Ml il Bl Bl
# Anuchem PTE Singapors cossad to be the subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. 31-08-3014

NOTE 31

During the years, the company reassaessed useful #fe of ils fixed assets as per Schadule i
of Companiss Act, 2013. Accordingly,an amount of ¥ 21,893,101/~ has bsen racognized in
the opening balance of retained sarning whera the remaining usetul lifs of the assetz is NiL.

MNOTE32

The ardar book pasition has irproved during the financial year as conparad o the past
Including long term supply agresments. During tha pariod, ths company has dlspossd most
of ifs non core assels and fhe proceeds have been utiiized io setiie some of the high cost
debt and also towards working capital requirements. This in cumulalive perspective will
Improve the overall parformance of the company in addition 1o absorbing accumulated
loases. Hance although thars are acciemulated losses as on 315t March, 2015, considaring
the overall sirafegy, going concern would not be affected and accordingly financial
statarments hive bean prapared.

HOTE33

The Gurrent financial stalements have been prepared for 12 months wheress the previous
period was for € months and accordingly previous year figurse ars not comparable.
Pravious ysar's figures have been reclassified in accordancs with the rsgquirements
applicable during the current period.

O ]

NOTE 34

{A} YALUE OF IMPCAT CALCULATED CIF BASIS
Raw Material

Velue of store Consumsad

impart
Indaganous

{6} EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENGY:
{Ter the axbert puid)
Travalling Expanses
Commisslon
Intarest and oiwr changes on FC loan from banks

I1-03-2018
12 donis
¥

138

i

S1-02-2014
& Morths
z

32474010

Total £,138870 108212255

0%
00% 5123828

Total

%
100%

4,538,052

119,740

2,556,658

An por cur Report of eugn date For and on Bohpif of the Board of Dlrectonm
Far V. SARKAR AITAR & CO. A.T. JAVER AR DU

Charened Ancountanis Chairmen & Oirecior

Firm Fiogn.No. 108208W Managing Director

ARVIND SOHAR M. B JSAN T. M. 8HaH

Pariner Company Seargiary  Direvior

Memberahip Ho. 124082

Piace : Mumbai
Dated : 16t Aprli, 2015

8. P. BHAH
Chilef Finance Offcar Direcior

BEENA A SAVERL

?.8. JRAVESS
Direestor

P. K. DESA!
Direcior

A A JAVER!
Diractor
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FIVE YEAR HIGHLIGHTS
{¥in Lacs)
2014-15 201314 | 201213 2011-12 2010-11
ARESQURCES
Capiial 1880.08 1085.08 | 1085.08 820.08 820.08
Resarve {672.31) § (1068.30) | (880.47) | (727.88) {750.06)
Net Worth 1207.77 2578 104.61 182.20 170.02
Biate Govi.Sales Tax Incentives 14,80 14.80 14.90 20.90 20.90
Other Borrowings 2708.54 276771} 478823 ) 479503 4456.58
TOTAL 3831.21 280830 | 4887.74 | 5008.13 4647.51
UTILISATION OF RESOURCES
Fixed Assels 10888.87 | 1011531 § 1026228 | 10247.82 10045.84
Less:Depraciation 6810.63 8691.48 | 662358 ] 6289.35 5973.72
Net Fixed Assels 3888.18 | 342383 3638.71 [ 395857 407222
investments 8.80 1872 18.72 41.22 41.22
Net Current Assets {78.77) | (631.16) | 123331} 1008.34 534,07
TOTAL 3831.21 2808.39 § 4887.74; 5008.13 4647.51
REVERUE
Sales of Products 4778.85 320223 | 8679.67 ] 854043 542778
other operalive revenus 28.17 64.05 161.25 148,71 72.94
Othar income 35.76 88.72 85.08 17.75 90.62
TOTAL REVENUE 4840.78 | 3366.00| 6926.00] 6706.89 5581.34
EXPENDITURE
Gost of Materials consurned / Purchase of Stock
in Trads 323280 § 22808 428287 374078 3402.83
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work
in progress and stock in rade 151.70 3484 ) (247.44) 7.13 {134.05)
Employee Benefit cost 54417 381.31 635.91 451.02 457.17
Financial cost 462.56 817.27 § 1017.52 663.94 514.18
Depraciation 208.83 20749 36740 315.683 335.91
Other expenses 1231.06 91665 | 165534 | 1646.89 1500.11
TOTAL EXPENDITURE §829.32 428314 | 789140} 682537 8085.13
Profit fioes before Tax & Exceptional iems {988.53) {317.14} | (765.40) | (118.48) (4893.79)
Add: Profit on Sals of Assais /invesiment/
Exceplional Hems 1305.18 1067.32 810.57 0.00 0.00
{Less): Tax Expenses {102.29) 206.35 224231 (226.92) 33.78
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAX 418.92 (56.17) | (178.40)] 108.44 (527.57)
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If undelivered please retum to
Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited
HIRA BAUG, 1st Floor,

Kasturba Chowk, (C.P. Tank),
Mumbai - 400 004. INDIA



SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED m
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m SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED
- o =

Regd. Office: Hira Baug, 1* Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank), Mumbai — 400 004
CIN: L24110MH1973PLC016698 Website: www.sncl.com
Tel .022.23822524 Fax 022.23887235 E-Mail : sadhananitro@sncl.com
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member(s):

Registered address:

No. of Shares held:

Folio No/ DP Id & Client Id:
Joint Holder (s):

E-mail 1d:
I/We, being the member (s) of shares of Sadhana Nitro Chem Limited, hereby appoint:
T NamMe: AAIESS: ..
E-mailld: ..o Signature: ... orfailing him/her
2. NamMe: . AQArESS: ..
E-mail Id: ... Signature: ... ..ooeiii or failing him/her
3. Name: ..o AArESS: ..o
E-mail Id: ... Signature: ......ooeii or failing him/her

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 42"° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
of the Company on Tuesday, 11" August, 2015 at 3.00 p.m. at Seth Hirachand Gumaniji Trust Hall, Hira Baug, 1*
Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank), Mumbai-400 004

ltem (For) (Against)
No. Resolution No. of Shares | I/We assent to | I/We dissent to
the Resolution | the Resolution
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. Adoption of Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow
Statement as at 31* March, 2015 and reports of Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon.

2. To Appoint Smt. Seema A. Javeri (DIN: 01768936), as Director
liable to retire by rotation.

3. Appointment of Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2015-16
and fixing remuneration thereof.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To adopt new set of Articles of Association of the Company

5. Re-appointment of Shri Asit D. Javeri (DIN 00268114) as CMD and
fixing remuneration thereof.

6. Appointment of Smt. Seema A. Javeri (DIN: 01768936), as
Executive Director — Administration and fixing remuneration

thereof.
7. To approve contracts / arrangements / transactions with the related
parties.
Signed this day of 2015 Please affix
Revenue
Stamp of
21/-
Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Notes:

1. Amember entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and a proxy need
not be amember of the Company. The proxy in order to be effective must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2. Aperson can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. Amember holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder




SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED m
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SADHANA NITRO CHEM LIMITED
Regd. Office: Hira Baug, 1* Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank), Mumbai — 400 004
CIN: L24110MH1973PLC016698 Website: www.sncl.com
Tel .022.23822524 Fax 022.23887235 E-Mail :sadhananitro @sncl.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue of the meeting.

Sr. No.

Folio/D.P. & Client I.D. No.
Name

Address

Joint Holder (s)

No. of shares held

| hereby record my presence at the 42"> ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company on Tuesday, 11" August,
2015 at 3.00 p.m. at Seth Hirachand Gumaniji Trust Hall, Hira Baug, 1* Floor, Kasturba Chowk (C.P. Tank),
Mumbai-400 004

Signature of the Attending Member: Signature of Proxy :

NOTES:

(1) Shareholder/ Proxy desiring to attend the meeting must bring duly filled in and signed Attendance Slip to the meeting
and hand over at the entrance.

(2) Shareholder/ Proxy desiring to attend the meeting should bring his/her copy of the Notice alongwith Annual Report
for reference at the meeting.

EVEN Electronic Voting Event Number User ID Password

DP-CL ID/FOLIO *

* For other than Physical Shareholders - User ID & Password shall be the same as allotted for Postal Ballot Notice
appended herewith.
**Please refer Notice of 42 Annual General Meeting for E-voting instructions
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